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Quadnetics Group plc

Quadnetics Group plc is a leader in the development,
design, integration and management of advanced
surveillance technology and security networks. Our
solutions are delivered direct to end-users through
Quadrant Security Group, our security services business,
and our applications software, control systems and
imaging products are sold worldwide through resellers,
distributors and agents under the Synectics brand.

focusing
on the future

SERVICES

PRODUCTS AND SOFTWARE

• INTEGRATED SYSTEMS
• MOBILE SURVEILLANCE
• SUPPORT SERVICES

• SECURITY NETWORKS
• INDUSTRIAL SYSTEMS
• SURVEILLANCE TECHNOLOGY

Quadrant Security Group is one of the largest
independent integrated security systems
providers in the UK, delivering total security and
surveillance solutions from consultancy, systems
design, project management, installation and
training, through to fully outsourced facilities
management, all backed-up by our own 24 hour
call centre and nationwide support teams.

Synectics is a rapidly growing surveillance
technology business, with operations in the UK
and USA. Our award-winning products are in
use in large numbers of major urban surveillance
schemes and other applications. Demand for our
technology is increasing from end-users, OEMs
and distributors worldwide in response to the
need for durable high performance solutions for
critical surveillance applications.
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Financial and Operational Highlights
Turnover (£’000)
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Underlying profit* (£’000)

(2006: £3.6m)
Urban surveillance in London

■ Turnover £66.1 million (2006: £49.6 million)
– up 33%

Underlying earnings
per Ordinary share†

■ Sales in North America increase 111%

+ 8%
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■ Underlying profit* before tax £5.3 million
(2006: £3.6 million) – up 47%
■ Profit before tax £3.8 million (2006: £1.3 million)
– up 199%
■ Underlying EPS† 26.1p (2006: 24.2p) – up 8%
■ Basic EPS 17.4p (2006: 8.6p) – up 102%
■ Recurring revenue £12.8 million
(2006: £11.0 million) – up 16%

Dividends per share (p)

■ Proposed final dividend 4.0p per share making
6.0p for the full year – up 20%

+ 20%
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2.0

to 6.0p

■ Significant increase in product development activities
■ Overall, a year of good growth and sound
financial results
■ Strong order intake in current year

* Underlying profit represents profit before tax, goodwill, exceptional items
and share-based payments charge
† Underlying earnings per Ordinary share is based on profit after tax but
before goodwill, exceptional items and share-based payments charge
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Chairman’s Statement
Last year Quadnetics achieved
another year of good growth and
sound financial results.

David Coghlan
Chairman

“Future international and domestic
acquisitions are targeted in our strategy.”
David Coghlan
Chairman

Overview
I am pleased to report that last year Quadnetics achieved another
year of good growth and sound financial results, most notably
realising substantial growth and profitability from its North American
activities, and successfully completing the integration of the
businesses acquired in 2005/6. We have also made significant
progress in defining more rigorously the road ahead for Quadnetics.
Results
In the year ended 31 May 2007, Quadnetics achieved a 47%
increase in underlying profit (that is, profit before tax, exceptional
items, goodwill amortisation and share-based payment costs) to
£5.3 million (2005/6: £3.6 million), on turnover up 33% to £66.1
million (2005/6: £49.6 million). These results include the first full year
of the businesses acquired the previous year; however, a true likefor-like comparison is not possible following the integration of the
acquired activities into the existing Group.
Group consolidated operating margins for the year increased to
7.7%, up from 7.0% in 2005/6.
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Underlying earnings per share increased by 8% to 26.1p (2005/6:
24.2p). The Group’s corporation tax rate for 2006/7 is 24%,
compared with 8% in the prior year; therefore, a more valid
comparison of performance would be on a notional like-for-like full
tax basis, where underlying earnings per share were up by 31% to
24.1p (2005/6: 18.4p).
Consolidated net cash at 31 May 2007 was £5.6 million, compared
with £8.9 million at the previous year end. Approximately £2.1 million
of the net cash outflow resulted from the purchase of a new building
to accommodate the growth and consolidation of Synectics’
activities in Sheffield. We expect that most of the cash impact of the
purchase will be reversed in the current year, once a sale and
leaseback of the building is agreed and completed. There was also
a significant increase in working capital during the year, part of
which came from the previously anticipated resolution of creditor
provisions within the businesses acquired in 2005/6.
Further analysis of the Group results is contained in the Business
Review on pages 6 to 12.
Dividend
The Board is proposing a final dividend of 4.0p (2005/6: 3.5p),
payable on 7 December 2007 to shareholders registered on
9 November 2007, making a total of 6.0p for the full year
(2005/6: 5.0p).
Group Direction and Objectives
The electronic security and surveillance market is large, growing
and in the process of fundamental structural change. Advances in
technology over the past three to five years have allowed digital
recording, transmission, storage and networking of real-time video
images to become viable and economic in mainstream surveillance
applications for the first time. This shift to underlying digital
technology will continue for some while yet to create substantial
opportunities and threats within the established competitive order
of security equipment and systems suppliers. Current
manifestations include the raft of new market entrants offering the
latest and best digital recorder, camera, analytic software or ‘endto-end IP video solution’.

focusing
on the future

Casino in Indiana, USA

A small number of these new entrants may succeed; most will fail.
Quadnetics’ approach is based on certain assumptions about
where these market trends are leading, including that:
■ an understanding of information technology and networking will
continue to create opportunities and ultimately be vital for
success at any level;

We have increased our investment in the
Group’s research capabilities with the
acquisition of a new building for Synectics
in Sheffield and the establishment of a new
research centre in Guildford.

■ margins available on most hardware sales will be heavily eroded
over time;
■ sales and margins from software will grow and are likely to be
sustainable;
■ security systems integrators will continue to consolidate,
becoming bigger, more diverse and more global;
■ information technology companies will seek and gain an
increasing share of the security market;
■ digital video surveillance is still sufficiently complex and
demanding that it is unlikely to become simply a sub-set of the IT
industry, at least not for many years; and
■ certain specialist customer applications requirements are likely to
diverge increasingly from mainstream high volume market offerings.

Synectics’ new office in Sheffield
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Chairman’s Statement
continued

We believe Quadnetics is well positioned to address these trends, in
particular because of its critical mass, extensive experience in the
technologies of digital video, leading market positions in certain
customer sectors, record of successful acquisitions, and its heritage
of combining both technology development and customer
applications integration. Our primary objective is to build a sizeable,
broadly-based company, with sustainable long-term growth
prospects, providing integrated security and surveillance
applications and managed services to specialist customer sectors.
To achieve this objective, we aim to:
■ focus on a small number of customer sectors whose
requirements will be sufficiently and sustainably different from the
mainstream, and in which we can achieve a significant market
share;
■ maintain our core of increasingly software-based proprietary
technology, adapted to the specialist needs of our target
customer sectors;
■ expand the scope of applications and innovative services
provided to these customers to maximise recurring revenues and
market share; and
■ seek further bolt-on acquisitions to add market share, specialist
capabilities and/or geographical position in our chosen sectors.
The primary characteristics of the customer sectors we target are
that they have either a very high potential cost-of-failure in their
security systems, or highly demanding environmental or usage
conditions, in both cases limiting the degree of competition from
non-specialist suppliers.
Since 2001/2 when Quadnetics moved to AIM and focused
exclusively on the electronic security market, total revenues have
grown at a compound rate of 38% per year, of which 15% per year
has been organic growth and the remainder from acquisitions. Over
the last four years, underlying profits before tax have grown at 38%
per year and, more tellingly, underlying earnings per share on a likefor-like tax basis have grown at 18% per year. This is a sustained
performance that the Board feels justifies its confidence in the
Company’s ability to continue to deliver value to shareholders from
the direction that has been laid out.

People
I would like once again to express the Board’s very genuine thanks
to the Group’s employees for a year of considerable effort and
achievement. As alluded to above, the task of integrating two similar
sized activities within Quadrant Security Group Limited was always
going to be difficult and at times painful, and it has therefore been
especially gratifying to see how effectively and professionally it has
been carried out by all concerned. Across the Group we have seen
evidence from our people of flexibility, common sense and
dedication to the interests of our business and customers that have
underpinned the continued strengthening of Quadnetics’ position in
its market.
During the year we have had one change on the Board, resulting
from the retirement of Bob Westcott. As I noted at the time, Bob
was the founder and inspiration behind the SDA business that
formed the core of Protec Group that we acquired in 2005. Our
Board much appreciated his insightful contributions during his time
with us.
Outlook
The pace of activity in most of our business sectors increased
towards the latter stages of last financial year and this has largely
continued into the first few months of this year, in particular with the
award of significant contracts for integrated systems in the UK and
Middle East that had been anticipated for some time.
Prior to the award of these contracts, the Group’s total outstanding
firm order book at 31 May 2007 was £24 million, a small decrease
on the corresponding point last year. Of this figure, £12.8 million
represented orders in the nature of recurring revenue, an increase of
16% on last year and a positive indication of progress in this
important area.
During the year just started, we expect to see increased investment
in new product development and a reduced contribution from
historical elements of our managed services activities, together more
than offset by continued revenue growth and margin improvements
elsewhere. Overall, the Board is looking forward to another year of
good progress for the Group.

David Coghlan
Chairman
5 September 2007
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Town centre surveillance control room

“Our primary objective is to build a
sizeable broadly-based company, with
sustainable long-term growth prospects,
providing integrated security and
surveillance applications and managed
services to specialist customer sectors.”
David Coghlan
Chairman, Quadnetics
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Business Review
Quadnetics has been consistently beating
competitors by demonstrating the value
and strength of its products and services.

Russ Singleton
Chief Executive

2006/7 Results overview
Last year was a milestone year for Quadnetics, in which turnover
and underlying profitability rose by 33% and 47% respectively and
underlying profits increased for the fifth year in succession to break
through the £5 million mark at £5.3 million.

our Middle East activities, as certain major projects experienced
customer delays prior to contract award, and in on-bus CCTV. Both
these areas regained their momentum towards the end of the year,
and have carried on the improvement into the current period.

Quadnetics is currently organised into two primary business areas:
Quadrant Security Group (‘QSG’), which designs, installs,
maintains and manages integrated electronic security systems for
customers primarily in the UK and Middle East; and Synectics,
which designs, manufactures and supports software and hardware
products for sale worldwide both through security systems
integrators and direct to end users in a limited number of specialist
market sectors.

Synectics achieved turnover up by 42% in the year to £20.8 million,
and underlying operating profit up by 68% to £2.5 million. The most
significant contribution was organic growth from our US casino
surveillance systems activities, which delivered turnover more than
double that of the previous year and good profit margins. Given the
risks inherent in any ambitious growth plan for a UK company in
North America, this was an excellent result and gives confidence for
the development of our wider activities in that very large market.

QSG grew turnover in the year by 29% to £46.6 million, on which it
recorded underlying operating profits up by 31% to £4.2 million.
Growth was mainly driven by inclusion of a full year of contribution
and integration benefits from the former Protec businesses acquired
in November 2005. This acquisition was a major step for QSG, and
the integration of the two sets of activities has proceeded well on
plan, much to the credit of the management teams and employees
from both sides of what is now a fully combined business.

Markets
Our core markets are continuing to enjoy growth, in part due to the
ever increasing need for security and protection, but also due to the
performance and cost advantages that new IT or converged
solutions can deliver. We have been developing new strategies to
take advantage of our strengths in these times of significant change
in the technology base within the electronic security systems market
and intend to capitalise on these for the next few years as we enter
new markets and increase our share in existing areas.

Within the various customer and geographical sectors, contribution
from the managed security services business area was exceptionally
strong, benefiting from higher than anticipated profits achieved in
managing the run-off of large, low margin historical contracts as the
activity is transitioned to a higher margin business model where it
provides more comprehensive outsourced security management to
its multi-site retail clients. We believe the potential in this new area is
substantial, particularly in its ability to generate contracted recurring
revenues, but it will require investment in systems and personnel over
the next couple of years. Elsewhere, contributions were below plan in
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Nigel Poultney
Finance Director

Our business is becoming increasingly global, with strong revenue
growth outside the UK in 2006/7, as shown below. Our operations
in the UK, the USA and the Far East are already benefiting to varying
degrees on the software-based surveillance opportunities that are
unfolding and with our strong technology and customer-care focus,
we are well positioned for the next three to five years’ growth as we
head towards the next milestone. We intend to accelerate the
application and development of our successful business model into
overseas markets and at home.

focusing
on the future

Electronic surveillance systems (‘ESS’) market

9%
Global ESS market
(2007 Sources: Key Note, Frost &
Sullivan, Company estimates)

40%
40%

20bn

£
■ UK

■ Asia & Pacific

■ North America

■ Rest of World

The electronic security and surveillance
market is large, growing and in the
process of fundamental structural change.

“We intend to accelerate the application and
development of our successful business
model into overseas markets and at home.”
Russ Singleton
Chief Executive, Quadnetics

Quadnetics
turnover by
geographical
segment

11%

3%

8% 82%

7%

66m

£

Global ESS* market
product sectors
(2007 Sources: Key Note, Frost &
Sullivan, Company estimates)

20bn

£

27%
Integrated
Systems /
Other

25%
Access
Control

20%

28%

Video
Surveillance

Intruder
Alarms

* Excluding Fire Detection and Remote Monitoring
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Business Review
continued

Casinos — Canada and USA

North America
“We have experienced
rapid growth in acceptance
of Synectics technology in
the large North American
casino market with sales
more than doubling in the
last year.”

■ Synectics technology is used in Ontario Government
regulated casinos recording over 6,000 channels
■ Five independent Native American tribal casinos with
over 4,000 channels have also selected Synectics
technology
■ Support team expanded and full Synectics product
range prepared for Autumn launch

John Katnic
Chief Operating Officer,
Synectic Systems Inc.

■ Synectics has also been selected for enterprise-wide
solutions in a number of corporate casino chains

Our turnover growth around the world has been as follows:
■ North America: +111%
Our solution is becoming product of choice in many casino chains,
with over $9 million of sales in the year and a further $7 million of
commitments to our technology already received. We are exploring
routes to market for our next generation solutions in mobile,
transportation, marine, oil and gas, retail and urban surveillance
programmes.
■ Far East: +47%
Sales of our EX explosion rated, marine and hazardous area
surveillance products into the Far East shipyards has almost
doubled over the year and we are working with our Singaporebased partner to extend the portfolio to the full range of Quadnetics
products and services. A specialist technical support engineer has
been recruited to assess the routes into the important Chinese
market.
■ Middle East: +32%
A small support office was opened towards the end of the year in
Riyadh, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and we have recruited a regional
sales manager based in Dubai to provide closer customer service
and support in this very active area.
■ UK and Rest of World: +29%
Revenues rose from £45 million to £58 million as we consolidated
our UK and Rest of World operations, and closed down several
managed services contracts that were not part of our new strategic
focus. Efficiency and scale benefits along with increased levels of
trading lifted profit margins.
Quadnetics has been consistently beating competitors by
demonstrating the value and strength of its products and services.
We are not resting on our laurels. We have an ambitious programme
to upgrade our information systems and we are investing in our
people and operations to make sure that we continue to provide
best in class support and service.
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Branding
With an increasing number of products and the increasing amount of
interest globally in what Quadnetics has to offer, we have taken the
opportunity to simplify and revise our branding as we broaden the
use of the Quadnetics’ core technologies. All physical products and
software are branded ‘Synectics’, and our solutions will come under
the ‘Quadrant’ brand. We are currently creating new propositions for
managed services that will lead or link-in with our existing products
and solutions to enhance customer bonding. We intend to become
more powerful in each of the customer sectors in which we operate
through this strategic focus. Marketing materials have been revised
and our websites have been made more accessible, and can be
found at the following addresses:
■ www.synx.com
■ www.qsg.co.uk
■ www.lookcctv.com
Research & Development
Product development activities were stepped up significantly during
the year, in particular focused on transition to the next generation of
H.264 digital video compression technology and on development of
Synectics’ ruggedised digital video recorder for the on-vehicle
transport market. This new suite of products will be launched later
in 2007.
H.264 is very efficient, leading to reduced bandwidths for streaming
video across networks and it requires less storage for recording
applications. The first new products are due for release towards the
end of the year and the road-map for H.264 also supports
megapixel and high-definition applications, which we intend to
develop for key niches over coming years.
One of the other areas we are investing in relates to the
management and control of the large amounts of data which
modern IP CCTV systems can generate. A large casino CCTV
installation might generate 30 Terra-bytes of data per day, with
typical expiration policies of between 7 to 30 days, and this data
flow never stops. This is an extremely demanding IT application and
is currently beyond the tools and capabilities of familiar off-the-shelf
products and software.

advanced
surveillance

Marine and hazardous surveillance

Asia & Pacific
“Having established a
footprint in the Asia and
Pacific region through
its ATEX certified EExd
camera equipment,
Quadnetics is now
broadening its range of
products and services
for this market.”

■ Significant orders received from Korean shipyards
■ Marine and hazardous surveillance solutions supplied to
24 vessels with orders for a further 28 ships
■ Singapore team expanded and strengthened ahead of
full product line-up at Security Asia show in November
2007
■ New long-range and thermal imaging solutions
developed to improve safety in busy shipping lanes

Paul Webb
Managing Director,
Synectics Industrial and
Surveillance Technology

Increasingly, customers are realising the value of data, whether this
is simply a convenient log of their physical assets, alarm activations
or equipment utilisation, through to corroborating point-of-sale data
with a visual record of what was sold, or for tracking players from
machine to machine throughout a casino. Our team of programmers
ensure our products meet the highest standards of data
authentication and integrity, as the ultimate purpose of many of our
systems is for evidential requirements.

In addition, goodwill amortisation increased from £0.7 million to £0.9
million as the goodwill arising on 2005/6 acquisitions bore a full
year’s charge in 2006/7. After also adjusting for exceptional
restructuring costs in 2005/6 underlying operating expenses
increased by 43%, just less than the rate of gross margin increase.
Profit before tax, share-based payments charge, exceptional items
and goodwill for 2006/7 was £5.3 million and compares with £3.6
million last year.

Group results for the year
Profit and loss
Overall sales in the year amounted to £66.1 million compared with
£49.6 million in 2005/6, an increase of 33%, although the
comparative period only included seven months’ sales for the
businesses acquired in that year. QSG’s sales grew by 29% to
£46.6 million compared with a growth rate of 49% (to £21.8 million)
at Synectics.
Gross profit improved by 44% to £21.8 million, ahead of the growth
in sales as a result of the relatively higher growth in sales from the
Synectics’ businesses, which overall earn greater margins.
Consolidated gross margins for the year increased from 30.5% in
2005/6 to 33.0% in 2006/7, in part due to Synectics increasing its
proportion of total Group sales. Underlying this, QSG’s margins
improved during the year whilst Synectics’ margins showed a slight
reduction which arose primarily as a result of increased stainless
steel material costs at our Industrial Systems business, and a return
to more typical margin levels at Security Networks, in a year in
which sales grew by over 40% in the UK and North America.
Operating expenses increased from £13.7 million to £18.2 million.
The Group has implemented FRS 20 ‘Share-based payment’ for the
first time in these results, and as a result a charge of £0.6 million for
share-based payments charge arising on the Group’s share
schemes, is included in operating expenses. A prior year adjustment
of £0.3 million has been made to restate comparative figures.

The tax charge for 2006/7 was £1.1 million compared with £0.1
million in 2005/6. The underlying tax rate (being the percentage ratio
of the tax charge for the year, after adding back the tax effect of
share-based payments and exceptional items, to the underlying profit
before tax, goodwill, share-based payments and exceptional items)
was 24%, benefiting mainly from the utilisation of brought forward tax
losses which had not previously been recognised in the profit and
loss account. This compares with 8% in 2005/6 when tax losses and
other tax timing differences were first recognised following the
acquisition of the Protec Group. At 31 May 2007 the Group had
carried forward tax losses of £1.9 million in total, of which £0.5 million
have yet to be recognised in the profit and loss account.

“We help our customers to understand,
define, implement and manage their
electronic security and surveillance
requirements in a way that best furthers
their organisation’s overall goals.”
Russ Singleton
Chief Executive, Quadnetics
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Business Review
continued

Oil, gas, retail and urban surveillance
■ Advance surveillance technology supplied to several
prestigious museum projects and the world’s largest gas
field in Qatar
■ Surveillance technology covering a 320 kilometre
liquefied natural gas pipeline in Yemen
■ Digital surveillance systems for Fujairah and Sharjah town
centres and a major oil processing plant in the United
Arab Emirates
■ Continued expansion in public area surveillance in Oman
and Bahrain
■ Security systems incorporating CCTV, access control,
control room equipment, recording and traffic
management for major petrochemical facilities in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Middle East
“We have been supplying
integrated security
technology solutions to the
Middle East for around ten
years. In that time, we have
built strong relationships
and have an excellent track
record for the delivery of
complex systems.”
John Kirtland
Sales and Marketing Director,
Quadrant Security Group
Integrated Systems

Profit after tax was £2.7 million compared with £1.2 million in
2005/6.

Balance Sheet
Major movements on balance sheet items are as follows:

Basic earnings per share were 17.4p (2005/6: 8.6p). However, the
underlying earnings per share, based on profit after tax but before
share-based payments and exceptional items (both net of any tax
effect) and goodwill amortisation, was 26.1p (2005/6: 24.2p).

During the year the Group established the Synectics Research
Centre in Guildford, and accordingly the expenditure on research
and development increased from £0.7 million in 2005/6 to £1.1
million in 2006/7. In accordance with Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice No. 13 ‘Accounting for Research and
Development’ development costs of £0.4 million, which can be
clearly identified to specific appropriate projects, have been
capitalised and included within intangible assets.
Tangible assets fell from £2.0 million to £1.8 million largely as a result
of the sale of Synectics’ property in Sheffield (net book value of £0.3
million) as part of the reorganisation of premises for that business.
Prior to the year end Synectics acquired new larger premises in
Sheffield to facilitate the growth and consolidation of the business at a
cost of £2.1 million, which it intends to sell and lease back in 2007/8.
Therefore, this expenditure has been classified as a current asset.
In addition, working capital balances rose by £3.8 million at 31 May
2007 as a result of increased activity in the last quarter of the year,
and elimination of some creditor provisions within the businesses
acquired in 2005/6.

Sharjah town centre

Provisions fell from £1.8 million at 31 May 2006 to £1.3 million at
31 May 2007, as a result of restructuring and property provisions
created at the previous year end being utilised or settled in
the period.
Consolidated net assets increased by £2.1 million to £30.5 million at
31 May 2007 (31 May 2006: £28.4 million), largely as a result of the
profit after tax for the year of £2.7 million less dividends paid of £0.8
million, and the issue of shares following the exercise of employee
share options (£0.2 million).
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Wide range of specialist solutions

Rest of World
“Our powerful
surveillance solutions
are now creating
interest from customers
on a worldwide basis.”

■ Continued expansion into a number of European
casinos, including Greece, Slovenia and Albania
■ Banking sector projects in Ireland, India and France
■ Ongoing relationship with Dublin City Bus extended to
Bus Eireann

Philip Longley
Managing Director,
Synectics Security Networks

■ Development and expansion of surveillance systems in
town centres and private housing projects in South Africa
■ Long range surveillance technology supplied to two
Caribbean countries
■ Onshore and offshore oil exploration projects in Nigeria
■ Integrated surveillance solution for a power station in
Kazakhstan, supporting the growing North Caspian oil
field development

Cash
The Group ended the year with cash balances of £5.6 million,
following cash outflows of £3.3 million during the year, compared
with an opening balance at the start of the year of £8.9 million,
although this position was somewhat flattering, having benefited
from some favourable working capital adjustments just prior to the
year end.

Principal risks and uncertainty
The principal risks facing the Group include the following:
■

Price and margin pressure
The industry is competitive and the commoditisation of hardware
over time will add further pressure on sales and margins. The
Group’s strategy to counteract this is to continue to focus on
customer sectors where the electronic security systems have a
critical cost of failure, or an extreme environmental requirement,
rather than the mass volume markets. In addition we will maintain
a core of increasingly software-based proprietary technology
giving higher margin opportunities, and focus on developing
recurring revenues.

■

Technological risk
As the industry becomes increasingly technical and transitions to
digital technology, there is a risk that products become obsolete
or irrelevant. Quadnetics has countered this risk through
increased investment in research and development resources
during the year, and a continued focus on customer-led
development to ensure that the most appropriate product
development paths are followed.

■

People skills and dependency
As with most businesses, particularly those operating in a
technical field, we are dependent on our employees with key
managerial, engineering and technical skills. The Group aims to
offer appropriate compensation packages and incentive
arrangements, as well as maintaining certain key-man insurance
policies, in order to mitigate this risk.

■

Impact of fluctuating currency exchange rates
The Group faces currency risk which it manages principally
through forward exchange contracts. As the Group expands its
sales and other activities outside the UK, these policies will be
developed to manage the impact of currency variations.

In addition to the increases in working capital noted above, major
cash outflows arose from the purchase of the Sheffield property
(£2.1 million), net expenditure on other fixed assets and
development expenditure of £0.7 million, taxation (£0.7 million) and
dividends (£0.8 million).
The Group has no debt.
Key performance indicators
The Directors measure the Group’s performance, principally using
the following financial indicators (as reflected in this Annual Report):
■

Sales

■

Gross profit percentage

■

Underlying operating profit and underlying profit before tax (both
profit measures being before goodwill amortisation, share-based
payments and exceptional items)

■

Earnings per share

■

Underlying earnings per share (based on underlying profit
after tax)

■

Order book

■

Recurring revenue (being contracted sales where a service is
delivered over a future time period, and revenues are recognised
in the relevant future accounting periods)
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Business Review
continued

Full range of products and services

UK
“We continue to invest in
systems and
personnel to ensure that
our longstanding
customers receive the
highest quality service
and support.”

■ We enable clients to migrate to modern IP technologies
through tailored solutions and specialist applications
■ Notable wins to upgrade security at a number of UK oil
installations, several category ‘A’ prisons and six nuclear
power generation sites
■ Our high street banking client base has now grown to
over 800 sites throughout the UK

Andrew Prince
Managing Director, Look CCTV

■ We continue to lead the market in UK on-board bus
surveillance systems and are now supplying our solutions
to the emergency services
■ We are now developing and extending our managed
service model for our existing retail clients, who currently
occupy more than 1.5 million square metres of retail space

Prospects
Quadnetics has completed a landmark year of success in 2006/7
and the business is now operating at a higher level in every area. We
are particularly focused on ensuring that we have the highest quality
people to continue our growth and will continue to pursue various
initiatives in the coming year to maintain our high staff retention and
to attract the best new talent.

We plan to continue our high level of investment in research and
development in the coming year as we develop our existing
applications and bring to market new products for deployment in
many of the customer sectors and territories in which the Group
now operates.
Over the last 12 months we have worked very hard at building the
quality of Quadnetics operations from the inside out and can see the
benefits of this coming through in terms of levels of contracted or
recurring revenue, which have increased by around 16% in the year,
along with follow-on orders from multiples or chains in prisons,
casinos and retailers for our products, our services or both.
Our cash balances allow us some flexibility to move quickly ahead
with bolt-on acquisitions. With the proven capabilities of the
management team, and the success of the acquisitions we have
made so far, we are now focused on both organic growth and on
future opportunities for strategic, value driven acquisitions.
We are optimistic about the future and expect to continue making
progress in all areas of the business.

Nuclear power station (Picture courtesy of Magnox)

RC Singleton
Chief Executive
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NC Poultney
Finance Director
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Quadnetics provides surveillance solutions for offshore oil exploration projects and other applications in extreme or hazardous environments

“We are optimistic about the future and
expect to continue making progress in all
areas of the business.”
Russ Singleton
Chief Executive, Quadnetics
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Board of Directors
Non-executive Directors
David Coghlan
Chairman

David Coghlan
Chairman
has degrees in Law and in Finance from the University of New South
Wales in Sydney and an MBA from Wharton in Philadelphia. He was
formerly a partner at strategy consultants Bain & Company and is
currently chairman of Evans & Sutherland Computer Corporation
(listed on NASDAQ) and a director of several other companies.

Dennis Bate CBE
Director

Dennis Bate CBE
Director
has 46 years of experience in the construction industry, of which 32
years were spent with Bovis, most latterly as board director
responsible for Bovis’ operations in the UK and Eastern Europe, and
then Bovis Lend Lease operations. He was awarded the CBE for his
services within the industry.

Executive Directors
Russ Singleton
Chief Executive

Russ Singleton
Chief Executive
is a Chartered Engineer and has a degree in Electrical and Electronic
Engineering from Leeds Metropolitan University. He became Group
Chief Executive in 2002. Prior to this he had been Managing
Director of Quadnetics' Security Division comprising Quadrant Video
Systems plc, which he joined in 1984, and Synectic Systems
Limited.

14

David Orme
Group Operations Director

David Orme
Group Operations Director
has a degree in Management Studies from Leeds University and has
worked in a variety of roles within the security services industry over
the last 20 years. Most recently, prior to joining the Company, he
was Chief Operating Officer of Bell Group plc, a successful quoted
electronic security systems supplier.
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Steve Coggins
Director

Steve Coggins
Director
joined the Board as a non-executive Director in January 2005. Steve
has held various senior roles in both sales and marketing and
general management in the information technology arena including
Senior Vice-President at both Amdahl (now part of Fujitsu) and at
Silicon Graphics. Earlier he spent time at IBM and also in
engineering computing in the aircraft industry.

Nigel Poultney
Finance Director

Nigel Poultney
Finance Director
has a degree in Business Studies from Aston University, and
qualified as a Chartered Accountant with Deloitte, Haskins and Sells
in 1981. He joined Quadnetics Group in 1991, having previously
worked for Dairy Crest and the RTZ group.

Peter Rae
Director

Peter Rae
Director
is a graduate of Cambridge University, and formerly Chief Executive
of S.W. Wood plc (now Wyndeham Press plc). He has current
interests in a wide range of engineering and other businesses.

Glenn Robinson
Group Technical and Business
Development Director

Glenn Robinson
Group Technical and Business Development Director
has a degree in Industrial Mathematics from Loughborough
University and qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 1992. He
joined the Group as Finance Director of Quadrant Video Systems plc
in 1997 and most recently, as a director of Synectic Systems
Limited, has been responsible for the development and delivery of
the Company’s large-scale digital security systems in the UK and
Canada.
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Senior Management

Quadrant Security Group
Terry Baker
Chairman,
SSS Management Services Limited

John Kirtland
Sales and Marketing Director,
Integrated Systems

Mike Boddy
Operations Director,
Integrated Systems

Alan Myers
Chairman, Look CCTV

Paul Burchfield
Managing Director,
SSS Management Services Limited

Andrew Prince
Managing Director, Look CCTV

Terry Baker
Chairman, SSS Management Services Limited
has spearheaded the growth and development of SSS Management
Services as Managing Director since the Company’s formation in
1995. Prior to this he worked within the security industry in various
senior management roles.
Mike Boddy
Operations Director, Integrated Systems
has an engineering diploma from Rubery Owen Organisation and
was a co-founder member of Midlands Video Systems (‘MVS’) in
1975. MVS was subsequently acquired by Quadnetics Group and
he has been Managing Director of Quadrant Video Systems from
2001 until the formation of Quadrant Security Group.
Paul Burchfield
Managing Director, SSS Management Services Limited
joined SSS Management Services Ltd in 1996 as Operations
Manager, progressing through to his current position of Managing
Director in September 2006. Previously, he worked for Dixons
Stores Group and served in the Armed Forces as a Senior NonCommissioned Officer for thirteen years.

John Kirtland
Sales and Marketing Director, Integrated Systems
has 20 years of experience in the Telecoms and IT sectors. After
graduation he gained experience in software development,
engineering and business consulting roles before moving to General
Cable in 1993 where he set up their Business Services operation. In
1995 he joined Anixter, the leading global distributor of network
products, where he became Managing Director of their UK network
integration business. Moving to Nortel in 1999 he took on the role of
Director, EMEA Network Services. He joined Protec plc in December
2002 to lead the Systems Division.
Alan Myers
Chairman, Look CCTV
had a career of over 25 years in the IT industry before joining Look
CCTV as Commercial Director in 2000. At that time its main
business area was commercial CCTV using analogue technology
generating annual sales of around £0.4 million. Following his
appointment as Managing Director of Look CCTV in 2001 he
directed the business towards the emerging mobile CCTV market
using novel digital technology, growing sales to over £7 million prior
to the business becoming part of Quadnetics Group in 2004. Alan
was appointed Chairman of Look CCTV in 2006.
Andrew Prince
Managing Director, Look CCTV
joined Look CCTV in 2001 as the General Manager, progressing
through to his current position of Managing Director in August 2005.
Previously, he worked within the PSV industry where he had a longestablished career of 23 years.
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Synectic Systems Group
Dr Bilgay Akhan
Head of Synectics Research Centre

John Katnic
Chief Operating Officer,
Synectic Systems, Inc.

Peter Hall
Operations Director,
Industrial and Network Systems

Philip Longley
Managing Director,
Security Networks

George Henderson MBE
General Manager,
Surveillance Technology

Paul Webb
Managing Director,
Industrial and Surveillance Technology

Dr Bilgay Akhan
Head of Synectics Research Centre
holds a Ph.D. in Electronics Engineering from the University of
Birmingham and joined Synectics in 2006 to lead the Synectics
Research Centre based in Surrey. Prior to joining Synectics, Dr Akhan
was CEO of visiOprime Limited, which successfully developed
sophisticated Intelligent Video Management Systems for global CCTV
markets, particularly for use in police custody suites and prison
applications. visiOprime also won the UK Government’s highly
prestigious Smart Award in 2002 for its innovative applications in mobile
video streaming. Prior to founding visiOprime, Dr Akhan was a Principal
Lecturer at the University of Hertfordshire where he conducted research
on Digital Signal Processing (‘DSP’) applications, and high-speed, highresolution video processing. He has written 2 DSP books which have
become widely used as DSP teaching platforms in many leading
universities around the world. With over 20 years’ experience in video
processing, and compression, he has also written in many journals and
conference publications and holds 12 patents in the technology.

George Henderson MBE
General Manager, Surveillance Technology
joined Falcon-Protec in May 2004 as Head of Projects, having retired
from the Armed Forces as a Lt-Colonel in the Royal Electrical and
Mechanical Engineers after 39 years’ service. He spent three years in
the Defence Procurement Agency managing a number of high profile
projects, and as a result was awarded the MBE in 1998. George
became General Manager when Falcon-Protec was acquired by
Quadnetics, and he is now responsible for running the day-to-day
business of the division.

Peter Hall
Operations Director, Industrial and Network Systems
has a degree in Accounting and Law from the University of Kent at
Canterbury and joined the Group in 2003. He has 30 years’ experience
working in a variety of major manufacturing companies, primarily in the
clothing industry.

Philip Longley
Managing Director, Security Networks
is an engineer and one of the original founders of Synectic Systems
Limited. He joined the Group in 1988 and has been instrumental in
Synectics’ sales growth and development, becoming Synectics Sales
Director in 1996 and Managing Director in 2005.

John Katnic
Chief Operating Officer, Synectic Systems, Inc.
was co-founder of AlphaPoint, a leading US DVR system supplier
acquired by Quadnetics in 2005. A graduate from the University of
California, Santa Barbara, he has over 25 years’ experience in corporate
sales, marketing, business development and management with several
successful high technology and publishing companies.

Paul Webb
Managing Director, Industrial and Surveillance Technology
has a degree in Physics from Imperial College, London, and has worked
in the CCTV industry since 1988, in engineering, sales and marketing,
business development and general management roles. Previously
Managing Director of Bewator Limited following a number of years living
and working in Asia, Paul joined Quadnetics in 2004 prior to the
acquisition of Coex Limited.
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Report of the Directors
For the year ended 31 May 2007
The Directors present their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2007.
Principal activities
The principal activity of the Group during the year was the provision of advanced CCTV and networked video systems and related security
management and support services. The principal activity of the Company was to act as a holding company for its trading subsidiaries, and
the provision of mobile CCTV surveillance systems through the Look CCTV division.
Review of business and future developments
The consolidated profit and loss account for the year is set out on page 25.
A review of the Group's activities during the year and its prospects for the future are contained in the Chairman's Statement on pages 2 to 4
and the Business Review on pages 6 through to 12 and is incorporated into this report by reference.
Group results and dividend
The consolidated profit after tax for the year was £2,702,000 (2006: £1,187,000).
The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 4.0p per share (2006: 3.5p per share), totalling £621,000, on 7 December
2007 to shareholders registered on 9 November 2007. Together with the interim dividend of 2.0p per share (2006: 1.5p per share), this
brings the full year dividend to 6.0p per share (2006: 5.0p per share) amounting to £922,000 (2006: £764,000).
Share Capital
The following changes in the Ordinary share capital of the Company have arisen during the year:
1) 536,500 Ordinary shares were allotted to the Quadnetics Group Employee Share Scheme for a consideration of £1,179,000 in cash,
funded by a loan from the Company (see notes 22 and 24);
2) 116,149 Ordinary shares were issued to former holders of Protec shares in connection with the acquisition of Protec plc (see note 22). At
31 May 2007, a further 503,562 Ordinary shares remained to be issued to Protec shareholders who had irrevocably accepted the Offer, thus
transferring beneficial interest in their Protec shares to the Company, but who had not at that time perfected their acceptance by submitting valid
share certificates to the Company’s registrars. Subsequent to the year end, 500,152 of these outstanding shares have been issued; and
3) 55,000 Ordinary shares were issued during the year as a result of share options held in the Company’s EMI share option scheme being
exercised. Further details are given in note 23.
Research and development expenditure
The Group has continued to invest in research and development of both software and hardware products for CCTV applications during
the year incurring total costs of £1,104,000 (2006: £671,000), of which £684,000 (2006: £671,000) have been written off to the profit and
loss account.
Directors
The Directors of the Company who served during the year ended 31 May 2007 were DJ Coghlan, D Bate, SW Coggins, DM Orme, NC
Poultney, PM Rae, G Robinson, RC Singleton and RW Westcott (resigned 5 January 2007).
In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, DJ Coghlan, G Robinson and RC Singleton retire by rotation at the Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.
Substantial shareholdings
The Company has been notified that on 29 August 2007 the following shareholders, other than Directors, had interests amounting to in
excess of 3% of the issued Ordinary share capital of the Company:
Number
of shares
%
Giltspur Nominees Limited
Quadnetics Group Employee Share Scheme
BT Pension Scheme Trustees Limited
Chase Nominees Limited
Royal Mail Pension Trustees Limited
Schroder Unit Trusts
Nortrust Nominees Limited
Bendery Properties Limited
18

1,619,592
1,378,500
1,278,346
901,905
868,971
737,320
540,691
522,956

9.58
8.15
7.56
5.34
5.14
4.36
3.20
3.09
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Directors’ interests in the Company
The Directors’ interests in the Company’s Ordinary share capital at 31 May 2007, which were unchanged at 29 August 2007 and which
were all beneficial, are shown in the table below:
31 May 2007
31 May 2006
Number of
Number of
shares
shares
DJ Coghlan
RC Singleton
D Bate
PM Rae
SW Coggins
NC Poultney
DM Orme
G Robinson

1,930,875
327,300
50,000
20,000
11,000
5,000
5,000
–

1,930,875
327,300
25,000
20,000
6,000
5,000
5,000
–

2,349,175

2,319,175

The interests of the Directors in the Company’s share schemes, which are not included above, are shown in the Remuneration Report on
pages 21 to 23.
Employees
Employment policies throughout the Group have been established to comply with relevant legislation and codes of practice relating to
employment, health and safety and equal opportunities. The Group’s policy is to consult and discuss current developments within the Group
with employees and to take account of their views in making decisions likely to affect their interests.
The Group makes every effort to recruit and continue the employment, training and promotion of those persons who are or become
disabled.
Policy on the payment of suppliers
The Company’s policy during the year was to pay suppliers in accordance with agreed terms and this policy will continue for the year ending
31 May 2008.
At 31 May 2007 the Company had 70 days purchases outstanding in trade creditors.
Charitable donations
During the year the Group made charitable donations of £1,799.
No political donations were made during the year.
Financial instruments
The Group’s operations expose it to a variety of financial risks including foreign exchange rates and credit risk. Further details are set out in
note 35.
Auditors
During the year KPMG Audit Plc were appointed as auditors to fill a casual vacancy arising. In accordance with section 384 of the
Companies Act 1985, a resolution for the appointment of KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.
Authorities to buy the Company’s own shares, allot shares and disapply statutory pre-emption rights
The following resolutions will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting:
1) An Ordinary Resolution to authorise the Directors to allot Ordinary shares of up to £1,163,795 in nominal value. In accordance with
guidelines issued by the Association of British Insurers, this figure comprises one third of the issued Ordinary share capital, plus the
maximum nominal value of the shares which the Directors could be required to allot if the holders of share options exercise their rights to
have shares allotted to them. The Directors have no present intention of exercising the authority, except in connection with the
Company’s share schemes.
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2) A Special Resolution to enable the Company to purchase its own shares up to a maximum of 1,690,477 Ordinary shares, representing
10% of the current issued Ordinary share capital. The Directors have no present intention to exercise such powers and would only do so
if satisfied that it would be in the interests of shareholders to do so.
3) A Special Resolution to renew the existing disapplication of the pre-emption provisions of section 89(1) of the Companies Act 1985 so as
to give the Directors power to allot shares, firstly in relation to rights issues, and secondly in relation to the issue of Ordinary shares for
cash up to a maximum aggregate nominal value of £169,048.
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have elected to prepare the
financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
The Group and Parent Company financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
the Parent Company and of the profit or loss for that period.
In preparing these financial statements the Directors are required to:
■ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
■ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
■ state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and
■ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue
in business.
The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985.
They have a general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company’s
website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of the financial statements and other information
included in annual reports may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
Information given to the auditors
Each of the Directors has confirmed that so far as he is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware, and that he has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.
Going concern
After making appropriate enquiries the Directors have reasonable expectations that the Company and Group have adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Although not required to do so by the AIM rules the Directors have decided to provide the following corporate governance and Directors’
remuneration disclosures.
The Board
The Board currently consists of 4 executive and 4 non-executive Directors. The names, roles and biographical details of the Directors are set
out on pages 14 and 15. The Board meets at least six times a year, and relevant information is distributed to Directors in advance of these
meetings. The Directors have access to all information and, if required, external advice at the expense of the Company, and access to the
Company Secretary. The Board has adopted a schedule of matters specifically reserved to itself for decision, which includes major
20
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investment decisions, and changes in the composition of the Group. The Board approves the Group’s strategy and annual budget, and
considers detailed financial and operational reports on the progress of the Group. In relation to non-reserved matters the Board is assisted
by a number of committees with delegated authority. The Board met six times during the year with all Directors in attendance except for PM
Rae who was absent from one meeting.
The Board attaches a high priority to communication with shareholders. The Group’s annual and half yearly reports are sent to all
shareholders. The Group liaises regularly with major shareholders and there is an opportunity for individual shareholders to question the
Chairman at the Annual General Meeting. The Company’s website (www.quadnetics.com) provides financial and business information about
the Group, including copies of its most recent annual and interim reports.
The Board includes non-executive Directors, who bring strong judgement and considerable knowledge and experience to the
Board's deliberations. Their service is non-pensionable and, except for DJ Coghlan (Chairman), they do not participate in the Company's
share schemes.
D Bate, SW Coggins and PM Rae have been identified as independent non-executive Directors, with PM Rae being the Senior Independent
Director. The Board consider them to be independent of Group management and free from any business or other relationships that would
materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.
All Directors are subject to re-election every three years. Accordingly, DJ Coghlan, G Robinson and RC Singleton retire by rotation at the
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at that meeting.
The Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises PM Rae, D Bate and SW Coggins, who are all non-executive Directors, and provides a forum for reporting
by the Group’s external auditors. The Audit Committee has formal written terms of reference and met three times during the course of the
last financial year, with all three members in attendance except for one meeting where D Bate was absent. Executive Directors do not attend
other than by invitation of the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee’s primary task is to review the scope and results of the external audit. It is also responsible for assisting the Board to
discharge its duties with regard to the Group’s financial affairs and, in liaison with the external auditors, for reviewing the adequacy of the
Group’s accounting, financial and operational controls. The Audit Committee also ensures that an appropriate relationship between the
Group and its external auditors is maintained. The Audit Committee is satisfied that the current provision of non-audit services by the
Group’s auditors does not impair their independence or objectivity.
During the year the provision of external audit services to the Group was reviewed leading to the appointment of KPMG Audit Plc as
auditors to the Group.
Internal control
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The purpose of
the system of internal control is to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The Directors have established an organisational structure with clear operating procedures, lines of responsibility and delegated authority. In
particular there are clear procedures for capital investment appraisal and approval and financial reporting within a comprehensive financial
planning and accounting framework.
The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and concluded that such a function is not currently appropriate given the size
of the Group.
REMUNERATION REPORT
The Company's Remuneration Committee comprises PM Rae, D Bate and SW Coggins, who are all non-executive Directors and have no
personal or financial interests in the matters to be decided. The objective of the Remuneration Committee's policy is to attract, retain and
motivate high calibre individuals as executive directors with a competitive package of basic salary, incentives and rewards, including share
options, which are linked to individual performance, the overall performance of the Group and the interests of shareholders. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for agreeing the remuneration of the managing directors of the principal subsidiaries and
making awards to other employees under the Group’s share option and employee share schemes.
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The Remuneration Committee has formal written terms of reference and met once during the course of the last financial year, with all
members in attendance. Executive Directors do not attend other than by invitation of the Remuneration Committee.
Information in a) and b) below forms part of the financial statements.
a) Remuneration

Salary
and fees
£’000
Executive Directors
DM Orme†
(appointed 5 August 2005)
125
NC Poultney
120
G Robinson†
(appointed 5 August 2005)
86
RC Singleton
175
Non-executive Directors
DJ Coghlan
75
PM Rae
25
SW Coggins
25
D Bate†
(appointed 9 November 2005)
25
RW Westcott§ (appointed 9 November
2005, resigned 5 January 2007)
19
Total

675

Year to
31 May
2007
Total
£’000

Year to
31 May
2006
Total
£’000

Benefits
£’000

Sub-total
£’000

Pension
contributions
£’000

20
20

15
17

160
157

6
8

166
165

116
179

20
60

14
31

120
266

9
18

129
284

100
238

–
–
–

7
–
–

82
25
25

–
–
–

82
25
25

75
25
25

–

–

25

–

25

15

–

–

19

–

19

13

120

84

879

41

920

786

Bonuses*
£’000

* Bonuses were paid or accrued in 2006/7 for specific achievement of agreed personal and corporate objectives.
† Prior year amounts shown in respect of DM Orme, G Robinson and D Bate are for the period from their appointment to 31 May 2006.
§ Amounts shown in respect of RW Westcott are for the period from his appointment to his resignation.

Pension contributions shown above reflect pension payments into money purchase arrangements. There were no other pension payments
or accrued pension benefits arising under money purchase schemes in respect of Directors.
Comparative figures for the year ended 31 May 2006 include pension contributions of £5,000, £7,000, £7,000 and £21,000 made for DM
Orme, NC Poultney, G Robinson and RC Singleton respectively.
b) Share schemes
The Directors did not have any interests in the Company's share option schemes during the year and no new options were granted to, or
exercised by, any Directors between 1 June 2007 and 29 August 2007.
The following directors hold an interest in the Company’s shares through participation in the Quadnetics Group Employee Share Scheme,
which was established in June 2005, as set out below and in note 24.
Under the provisions of the Quadnetics Group Employee Share Scheme the shares are held for the benefit of the Directors set out below, on
terms similar to a share option scheme whereby the value of the appreciation in the Company’s share price above the issue price over a
minimum three-year period accrues to the relevant Director provided that the Company meets certain performance thresholds linked to the
FTSE AIM All Share Total Return Index. No rights under this scheme were exercised by Directors during the year.

RC Singleton
NC Poultney
G Robinson
DM Orme
DJ Coghlan
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Date of award

Number of
shares

Issue price
(p)

17 June 2005
17 June 2005
17 June 2005
23 June 2005
12 July 2006

300,000
160,000
160,000
160,000
120,000

241.0
241.0
241.0
241.0
212.5
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The mid market price of the Company’s shares at the beginning and end of the financial year were as follows:
Ordinary shares
of 20p each
At 1 June 2006
At 31 May 2007

217.5p
337.5p

The maximum and minimum share prices during the year were as follows:
Ordinary shares
of 20p each
Maximum
Minimum

395.0p
182.5p

c) Service contracts
There are no Directors’ service contracts with notice periods in excess of one year. The service contracts of the Directors who are eligible for
re-election at the Annual General Meeting are as follows:
Notice period
DJ Coghlan
G Robinson
RC Singleton

12 months
12 months
12 months

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (‘IFRS’)
At present companies that are listed on AIM are permitted to prepare their annual audited accounts in accordance with UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (‘UK GAAP’). However, the Group will be required to adopt IFRS for the first time in preparing accounts for
the year ending 31 May 2008. Accordingly, IFRS will be adopted with effect from 1 June 2006 and the Interim Report for the six months
ended 30 November 2007 will include restated comparatives for the first half and full year ended 31 May 2007. We have yet to fully assess
the impact of adopting IFRS but reconciliations between IFRS and UK GAAP will be provided to facilitate understanding of the main
changes. It is important to note that, although IFRS could significantly affect the presentation of the financial statements, it will not affect the
Group’s cash flow or its future strategic direction.
By Order of the Board

NC Poultney
Secretary
Quadnetics Group plc
Registered Number: 1740011
5 September 2007
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the members of Quadnetics Group plc
We have audited the Group and Parent Company financial
statements (‘the financial statements’) of Quadnetics Group plc for
the year ended 31 May 2007 which comprise the consolidated
profit and loss account, the consolidated and company balance
sheets, the consolidated cash flow statement, the consolidated
statement of total recognised gains and losses, the reconciliation
of movements in shareholders’ funds and the related notes. The
financial statements have been prepared under the accounting
policies set out therein.
This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body,
in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors
The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report and
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and UK
accounting standards (‘UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice’) are set out in the statement of Directors’ responsibilities
as contained within the Report of the Directors.
Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you
whether in our opinion the information given in the Report of the
Directors is consistent with the financial statements. The
information in the Report of the Directors includes that specific
information presented in the Chairman’s Statement and the
Business Review that is cross-referenced from the Business
Review section of the Report of the Directors.
In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has
not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding Directors’ remuneration and
other transactions is not disclosed.
We read the Report of the Directors and consider the implications
for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements
within it.
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Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and Company’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements.
Opinion
In our opinion:
■ the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance
with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of
the Group’s and the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 May 2007
and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended;
■ the financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and
■ the information given in the Report of the Directors is consistent
with the financial statements.

2 Cornwall Street
Birmingham B3 2DL, UK
5 September 2007

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 May 2007

Notes
Turnover
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Net operating expenses

3

4

Operating profit before goodwill amortisation,
exceptional items and share-based payments charge
Goodwill amortisation
Exceptional items – restructuring costs
Share-based payments charge
Total operating profit
Exceptional item in respect of a subsidiary disposed of in a previous year
Net interest receivable

6
9
10

Profit before tax, goodwill amortisation,
exceptional items and share-based payments charge
Goodwill amortisation
Exceptional items
Share-based payments charge

2007
Total
£’000

Restated
2006
Total
£’000

66,065
(44,234)

49,642
(34,495)

21,831
(18,242)

15,147
(13,715)

5,095
(911)
–
(595)

3,467
(740)
(965)
(330)

3,589
–
230

1,432
(300)
147

5,325
(911)
–
(595)

3,614
(740)
(1,265)
(330)

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax charge on ordinary activities

11

3,819
(1,117)

1,279
(92)

Profit for the financial year

25

2,702

1,187

Basic and diluted earnings per Ordinary share

13

17.4p

8.6p

Underlying basic and diluted earnings per Ordinary share

13

26.1p

24.2p

All activities are continuing.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
31 May 2007

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Property held for resale
Stocks
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Notes

2007
£’000

Restated
2006
£’000

14
15

16,344
1,780

16,925
2,049

18,124

18,974

2,056
5,074
21,508
5,596

–
4,281
19,990
8,940

34,234

33,211

(20,587)

(22,046)

13,647

11,165

31,771
(1,312)

30,139
(1,763)

30,459

28,376

3,382
14,851
9,565
(2,486)
5,147

3,263
13,634
9,565
(1,307)
3,221

30,459

28,376

17
18
19

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

20

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Provisions for liabilities and charges

21

Net assets
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Merger reserve
Other reserves
Profit and loss account

22
26
26
26
26

Equity shareholders’ funds

The financial statements on pages 25 to 55 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 5 September 2007 and
were signed on its behalf by:

RC Singleton
Director
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Company Balance Sheet
31 May 2007

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets
Stocks
Debtors

Notes

2007
£’000

Restated
2006
£’000

14
15
16

4,736
247
17,918

5,017
191
17,441

22,901

22,649

1,339
16,512

1,199
10,873

17,851

12,072

(9,147)

(5,685)

8,704

6,387

31,605
(703)
(3)

29,036
(204)
(303)

30,899

28,529

3,382
14,851
9,565
(2,486)
5,587

3,263
13,634
9,565
(1,307)
3,374

30,899

28,529

18
19

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

20

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for liabilities and charges

20
21

Net assets
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Merger reserve
Other reserves
Profit and loss account

22
26
26
26
26

Equity shareholders’ funds

The financial statements on pages 25 to 55 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 5 September 2007 and
were signed on its behalf by:

RC Singleton
Director

NC Poultney
Director
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 May 2007
2007
£’000

2006
£’000

612
233
(712)
(2,789)
–
(825)

3,246
132
(299)
(238)
3,220
(573)

(3,481)
137

5,488
(110)

(3,344)

5,378

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

(Decrease)/increase in cash in the year
Decrease in debt and lease financing

(3,344)
20

5,378
395

Change in net funds resulting from cash flows
Acquisitions

(3,324)
–

5,773
(53)

Movement in net funds in the year
Opening net funds

(3,324)
8,920

5,720
3,200

Closing net funds

5,596

8,920

Notes
Net cash inflow from operating activities
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Taxation
Net capital expenditure and financial investment
Acquisitions
Equity dividends paid
Cash (outflow)/inflow before use of liquid resources and financing
Financing
(Decrease)/increase in cash

31
32
32
32

32

Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow
to Movements in Net Funds
For the year ended 31 May 2007
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Consolidated Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
For the year ended 31 May 2007

2007
£’000

Restated
2006
£’000

Profit for the financial year
Other recognised gains and losses relating to the year – currency translation adjustment

2,702
(4)

1,187
(9)

Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year

2,698

1,178

Prior year adjustment in respect of FRS 20 (note 2)
Total recognised gains and losses recognised since last annual report

(244)
2,454

Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds
For the year ended 31 May 2007
2007
£’000

2006
£’000

Profit for the financial year
Dividends

2,702
(825)

1,187
(573)

Other recognised gains and losses relating to the year – currency translation adjustment
Credit in relation to share-based payments
Issue of shares
Share buy-back

1,877
(4)
53
157
–

614
(9)
42
9,477
(77)

Net movement in shareholders’ funds

2,083

10,047

Opening shareholders’ funds as originally stated in year ended 31 May 2006
Prior year adjustment in respect of FRS 20 (note 2)

28,578
(202)

18,329
–

Restated opening shareholders’ funds

28,376

18,329

Closing shareholders’ funds

30,459

28,376
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 May 2007
1

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards in the United Kingdom. A summary
of the more important Group accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, is set out below.
a)

Basis of accounting
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.

b)

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include those of the Company and all its subsidiaries on an acquisition accounting basis.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated profit and loss account and
consolidated cash flow statement from the date of their acquisition or up to the date of their disposal.

c)

Turnover
Turnover, which excludes value added tax and trade discounts, represents the value of goods and services supplied during the
year and includes the proportion of the sales value of contracts relevant to their state of completion. Income receivable from
maintenance contracts invoiced in advance is recognised in turnover on a straight-line basis over the contract term. Income from
maintenance contracts which relates to periods subsequent to the year end is included in creditors as deferred income.

d)

Contract balances
Contract balances are stated at cost, net of amounts transferred to cost of sales in respect of work recorded as turnover, after
deducting foreseeable losses and payments on account not matched with turnover. Turnover and profits attributable to contracts
are included in the profit and loss account as the contracts proceed in proportions relevant to their state of completion, less
amounts recognised in previous years. Provision is made for any losses as soon as they are foreseen. Amounts recoverable on
contracts, which are included in debtors, are stated at the net sales value of the work done less amounts received or receivable
as progress payments on account. Excess progress payments are included in creditors as payments on account.

e)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets purchased at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 31 May 1998 was written off directly against reserves, and will be charged to the profit
and loss account on the subsequent disposal of the related businesses. Goodwill on consolidation arising after this date is
capitalised as a fixed asset and amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of up to 20 years.

f)

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual values, on a straight-line basis
over the expected useful economic lives of the assets concerned, commencing on the first day of the month after being brought
into use. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are:
Freehold buildings
Plant, equipment, motor vehicles and other assets

2%
10%–33%

Leasehold buildings and improvements are written off over 50 years or, if shorter, the period of the lease. Freehold land is not
depreciated.
g)

Leased assets
Assets acquired under finance leases, including hire purchase agreements where applicable, are capitalised and depreciated in
accordance with the Group’s depreciation policy or over the term of the lease if shorter. The capital element of future lease
payments is included in the balance sheet as obligations under finance leases.
Rentals payable under operating leases are written off to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease.

h)

30

Stocks and work in progress
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In the case of finished goods, cost includes all direct expenditure
and production overheads based on the normal level of activity. Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving
and defective stocks.
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i)

Research and development expenditure
Research costs are written off to the profit and loss account as incurred.
Development costs are capitalised and held as ‘Intangible assets’ in the balance sheet when the costs relate to a clearly defined
project; the costs are separately identifiable; the outcome of such a project has been assessed with reasonable certainty as to its
technical feasibility and its ultimate commercial viability; the aggregate of the deferred costs plus all future expected costs in
bringing the product to market is exceeded by the future expected sales revenue; and adequate resources are expected to exist
to enable the project to be completed. Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the product, from the
commencement of commercial sales.
All remaining development expenditure that does not meet these criteria is written off to the profit and loss account as incurred.

j)

Taxation
The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of timing differences
between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.
Deferred tax is provided in full on timing differences which result in an obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a
right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallise based on current tax rates and law. Timing
differences arise from the inclusion of income and expenditure in taxation computations in periods different from those in which
they are included in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is more likely than not that
they will be recovered. Deferred tax balances are not discounted.

k)

Pension costs
Group employees are members of various pension schemes, all of which operate on a money purchase basis. Contributions to
these schemes are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.
The Group also operates a retirement benefit scheme, which has deferred defined benefit members. The expected return on the
scheme’s assets and the expected increase in the present value of the scheme’s liabilities during the year are included in the
profit and loss account as other finance income or charges as appropriate. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of total recognised gains and losses. Pension scheme liabilities and, to the extent that they are recoverable, pension
scheme assets are recognised in the balance sheet and represent the difference between the market value of the scheme’s
assets and the present value of the scheme’s liabilities, net of deferred taxation.
Pension scheme liabilities are determined on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method and are discounted at a rate
using the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liability.

l)

Foreign currency
Transactions denominated in foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are retranslated into sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the financial year or, if appropriate, at the forward contract rate. Exchange differences arising on these transactions are taken
to the profit and loss account in the year in which they arise.
The results of overseas subsidiaries are translated at the average rate of exchange and their assets and liabilities are translated at
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising on these translations are taken directly to reserves.

m)

Dividends
Dividends proposed by the Directors and unpaid at the year end are not recognised in the financial statements until they have
been approved by shareholders at a general meeting of the Company. Interim dividends are recognised when they are paid.

n)

Employee share schemes
Transactions of the Company-sponsored Quadnetics Group Employee Share Scheme are treated as being those of the
Company and are therefore reflected in the Parent Company and Group financial statements. In particular the scheme’s purchase
of shares in the Company are debited directly to equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 May 2007
2

ADOPTION OF FRS 20 ‘SHARE-BASED PAYMENT’
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments and cash-settled share-based payments to certain employees in the form of
share options under the Group’s share option schemes, and awards under the Quadnetics Group Employee Share Scheme
respectively.
In accordance with FRS 20, equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value is
recognised as an employee expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of the number of
shares that will eventually vest. The fair value of the options granted is measured using an option pricing model taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
For cash-settled share-based payment transactions, the fair value of the amount payable to the employee is recognised as an expense
with a corresponding increase in liabilities. The fair value is initially measured at grant date and spread over the period during which the
employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The fair value is measured based on an option pricing model taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted. The liability is revalued at each balance sheet date and
settlement date with any changes to fair value being recognised in the profit and loss account.
Where the Company grants options over its own shares to the employees of its subsidiaries, it recognises, in its individual financial
statements, an increase in the cost of investment in its subsidiaries equivalent to the equity-settled share-based payment charge
recognised in its consolidated financial statements with the corresponding credit being recognised directly in equity. The recharge of
the share-based payment charge is dealt with under normal inter-company account procedures.
FRS 20 is applicable for years commencing on or after 1 January 2006. Previously, equivalent items of share-based compensation
were noted in the financial statements but not charged to the profit and loss account, other than as required under UITF 17.
The Group has applied FRS 20 for the first time so, as this constitutes a change in accounting policy, it has been treated as a prior
period adjustment in accordance with FRS 3 ‘Reporting financial performance’ and the comparative figures in the primary statements
and notes to the accounts have been restated to reflect the new policy. The effects of the change in policy are set out below:
Group
2007
£’000

2006
£’000

Profit and loss account
Net operating expenses
Tax charge on ordinary activities – deferred taxation

(595)
165

(330)
86

Loss for the financial year

(430)

(244)
Group
2006
£’000

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

–

–

477

289

Balance sheet
Fixed asset investments
– investment in subsidiary undertakings
Debtors: amounts falling due in less than one year
– deferred taxation
Creditors: amounts falling due in less than one year
– other creditors

165

86

36

13

(542)

(288)

(542)

(288)

Net assets

(377)

(202)

(29)

14

53

42

53

42

Profit and loss account reserve
Credit in relation to share-based payments
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3

SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

By business segment
Turnover
Operating profit before goodwill
amortisation, exceptional items and
share-based payments charge

Services
£’000

Products
and
software
£’000

Unallocated*
£’000

2007
Total
£’000

46,579

20,765

(1,279)

4,200

2,468

(1,573)

Goodwill amortisation
Exceptional restructuring costs
Share-based payments charge
Operating profit after goodwill
amortisation, exceptional items and
share-based payments charge
Net assets/(liabilities)

1,992

7,156

21,311

Services
£’000

Products
and
software
£’000

Unallocated*
£’000

Restated
2006
Total
£’000

66,065

36,241

14,595

(1,194)

49,642

5,095

3,198

1,466

(1,197)

3,467

(911)
–
(595)

(740)
(965)
(330)

3,589

1,432

30,459

(1,410)

4,725

25,061

28,376

The Directors believe that the Group’s activities can be represented in two segments, (i) Services and (ii) Products and software, and
that the best measure of performance of those segments is operating profit before goodwill amortisation, exceptional items and sharebased payments charge, as shown above.
Services includes the integration, installation and service businesses managed as Quadrant Security Group, whilst Products and
software includes the Security Networks, Industrial Systems and Surveillance Technology businesses managed as Synectic
Systems Group.
Net assets attributed to each business segment represent the net external operating assets of the respective businesses excluding
goodwill, bank balances and debt which are shown as unallocated amounts.
* Unallocated amounts in respect of turnover represent intra-group sales, and in respect of operating profit represent central costs.

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

Turnover by destination:
United Kingdom
North America
Middle East
Asia and Pacific
Rest of World

54,283
4,668
2,041
1,768
3,305

39,954
2,209
1,546
1,203
4,730

Sales to third parties

66,065

49,642

By geographical segment

United Kingdom
2007
2006
£’000
£’000

North America
2007
2006
£’000
£’000

Total
2007
£’000

2006
£’000

Turnover by origin:
Total sales
Intra-group sales

62,676
(1,279)

48,627
(1,194)

4,668
–

2,209
–

67,344
(1,279)

50,836
(1,194)

Sales to third parties

61,397

47,433

4,668

2,209

66,065

49,642

Net assets†

30,583

28,869

(159)

(493)

30,424

28,376

† The 2006 figures are restated.

Operating profit has not been analysed by geographical segment as the Directors believe that this is commercially sensitive
information.
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4

NET OPERATING EXPENSES
2007
Total
£’000

Restated
2006
Total
£’000

Distribution costs
Administrative expenses (before goodwill amortisation,
exceptional items and share-based payments charge)
Goodwill amortisation
Exceptional restructuring costs
Share-based payments charge

276

224

16,460
911
–
595

11,456
740
965
330

Total administrative expenses

17,966

13,491

18,242

13,715

Exceptional operating expenses arise in relation to the restructuring of the Group’s businesses as a result of the acquisition of Protec
plc, which reduced the tax charge for the year ended 31 May 2006 by £98,000.

5

FEES PAYABLE TO THE COMPANY’S AUDITORS AND ITS ASSOCIATES

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and its associates for other services:
– the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation
– tax services
– corporate finance and transaction services
– other services

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

35

46

73
30
–
13

139
47
119
–

151

351

Amounts paid to the auditors included above for other services and not expensed through the profit and loss account amounted to
£nil (2006: £119,000).

6

OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profit is stated after charging:

Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of fixed assets held under finance leases
Depreciation of other fixed assets
Research and development expenditure
Rental payments under operating leases
– plant, machinery and vehicles
– other

7

34

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Directors’ remuneration is shown on pages 21 to 23 of the Report of the Directors.

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

911
–
571
684

740
24
451
671

827
482

510
374
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8

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
The average number of persons (including executive Directors) employed by the Group during the year was:
Group
Class of business (see note 3)
Services
Products and software
Central

Company

2007
Number

2006
Number

2007
Number

2006
Number

267
137
8

207
94
6

34
–
8

27
–
6

412

307

42

33

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

13,762
1,478
323
595

9,391
1,050
263
244

2,119
204
53
119

1,255
159
48
27

16,158

10,948

2,495

1,489

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

–

300

Group
Staff costs (for the above persons)
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs
Share-based payments charge

9

Company

EXCEPTIONAL ITEM

Provision for property costs of a former subsidiary

In 2006, the Company made provision of £300,000 for dilapidations and other costs in relation to its liabilities as a former lessee of a
property. The property had been occupied by a former subsidiary which was sold in 1996 and which went into administration in 2006.
The provision had no impact on the tax charge for that year.

10

NET INTEREST RECEIVABLE

Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts
Interest payable on unsecured loan notes
Interest payable on finance lease arrangements
Interest receivable

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

(3)
–
–

(6)
(2)
(1)

(3)
233

(9)
156

230

147
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11

TAX CHARGE ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Current taxation:
UK corporation tax on profits for the year
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Total current tax
Deferred taxation:
Origination and reversal of timing differences

2007
£’000

Restated
2006
£’000

1,258
–

680
(2)

1,258

678

(141)

(586)

1,117

92

The corporation tax assessed for the year differs from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30%. The differences are
explained below:
2007
2006
£’000
£’000
Profit on ordinary activities before tax

3,819

1,307

Tax on profit on ordinary activities before tax at standard rate of 30%
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes and timing differences
US profits taxed at 43%
Additional relief for qualifying research and development expenditure
Small companies relief
Goodwill amortisation not qualifying for tax relief
Utilisation of tax losses
Adjustment in respect of prior years

1,146

392

Current taxation for the year

1,258

227
110
–
–
273
(498)
–

336
–
(3)
(3)
180
(222)
(2)
678

The Group has tax losses available to be carried forward for offset against the future taxable profits of certain group companies
amounting to approximately £1.9 million (2006: £3.1 million). A deferred tax asset in respect of part of these losses, amounting to £0.4
million (2006: £0.5 million), has been recognised at the year end (note 19) as the Group believes that there will be future taxable profits
against which the losses will be relieved.
In addition to the above, the Group has capital losses of approximately £19 million (2006: £19 million) available for offset against future
taxable gains. No deferred tax asset in respect of these losses, which would amount to £6 million, has been recognised in these
financial statements as there is insufficient evidence that the asset will be recovered against future capital gains.
It has been announced that the corporation tax rate applicable to the Group is expected to change from 30% to 28% from 1 April
2008. The deferred tax asset has been calculated at 30% in accordance with FRS 19 ‘Deferred Tax’. Any timing differences which
reverse before 1 April 2008 will be charged or relieved at 30%. Any timing differences which exist at 1 April 2008 will reverse at 28%
and, because of the uncertainty of the point at which the deferred tax asset will reverse, it is not possible to calculate the full financial
impact of this change.
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DIVIDENDS
The following dividends were paid by the Company during the year:
2007
Pence
per share
Final dividend for the year ended 31 May 2005
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 May 2006
Final dividend for the year ended 31 May 2006
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 May 2007

3.5
2.0

2006
£’000

Pence
per share

£’000

3.0
1.5

351
222

524
301
825

573

The final dividend for the year ended 31 May 2007 has not been approved by shareholders and as such has not been included as a
liability as at 31 May 2007. The Directors recommend a final dividend of 4.0p per share amounting to £621,000 and, subject to
approval, this is expected to be paid on 7 December 2007 to shareholders on the register at 9 November 2007. This will give a total
dividend for the year of 6.0p (2006: 5.0p).

13

EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE
2007
Pence
per share

Restated
2006
Pence
per share

Basic and diluted earnings per Ordinary share

17.4

8.6

Underlying basic and diluted earnings per Ordinary share

26.1

24.2

Basic and diluted earnings per Ordinary share
The calculation of basic earnings per Ordinary share is based on the profit after taxation for the year of £2,702,000 (2006: £1,187,000)
and on 15,494,999 shares, being the weighted average number of shares in issue and ranking for dividend during the year (2006:
13,781,617).
The calculation of diluted earnings per Ordinary share is based on the profit after taxation for the year of £2,702,000 (2006:
£1,187,000) and on 15,503,696 shares, being the weighted average number of shares that would be in issue after conversion of all
the dilutive potential Ordinary shares into Ordinary shares (2006: 13,789,163).

Profit
after tax
£’000

Weighted
average
number of
Ordinary
shares

Earnings per
Ordinary
share
p per share

Year ended 31 May 2007
Basic earnings per Ordinary share
Dilutive potential Ordinary shares arising from share options

2,702
–

15,494,999
8,697

17.4
–

Diluted earnings per Ordinary share

2,702

15,503,696

17.4

Year ended 31 May 2006
Basic earnings per Ordinary share
Dilutive potential Ordinary shares arising from share options

1,187
–

13,781,617
7,546

8.6
–

Diluted earnings per Ordinary share

1,187

13,789,163

8.6
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13. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE (CONTINUED)
Underlying basic and diluted earnings per Ordinary share
The calculation of underlying basic earnings per Ordinary share, which the Directors consider gives a useful additional indication of the
underlying performance of the Group, is based on the profit after taxation for the year, but before deducting exceptional items (net of
tax), amortisation of goodwill and share-based payments charge (net of tax) of £4,043,000 (2006: £3,338,000) and on 15,494,999
shares, being the weighted average number of shares in issue and ranking for dividend during the year (2006: 13,781,617).

Profit
after tax
£’000

Weighted
average
number of
Ordinary
shares

Earnings per
Ordinary
share
p per share

Year ended 31 May 2007
Basic earnings per Ordinary share
Exceptional items
Impact of exceptional items on tax charge for the year
Goodwill amortisation
Share-based payments charge
Impact of share-based payments charge on tax charge for the year

2,702
–
–
911
595
(165)

15,494,999

17.4
–
–
5.9
3.8
(1.0)

Underlying basic earnings per Ordinary share

4,043

15,494,999

26.1

Year ended 31 May 2006
Basic earnings per Ordinary share
Exceptional items
Impact of exceptional items on tax charge for the year
Goodwill amortisation
Share-based payments charge
Impact of share-based payments charge on tax charge for the year

1,187
1,265
(98)
740
330
(86)

13,781,617

8.6
9.1
(0.7)
5.4
2.4
(0.6)

Underlying basic earnings per Ordinary share

3,338

13,781,617

24.2

The calculation of underlying diluted earnings per Ordinary share is based on the profit after taxation for the year, but before deducting
exceptional items (net of tax), amortisation of goodwill and share-based payments charge (net of tax) of £4,043,000 (2006:
£3,338,000) and on 15,503,696 shares being the weighted average number of shares that would be in issue after conversion of all the
dilutive potential Ordinary shares into Ordinary shares (2006: 13,789,163).
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Profit
after tax
£’000

Weighted
average
number of
Ordinary
shares

Earnings per
Ordinary
share
p per share

Year ended 31 May 2007
Underlying earnings per Ordinary share
Dilutive potential Ordinary shares arising from share options

4,043
–

15,494,999
8,697

26.1
–

Underlying diluted earnings per Ordinary share

4,043

15,503,696

26.1

Year ended 31 May 2006
Underlying earnings per Ordinary share
Dilutive potential Ordinary shares arising from share options

3,338
–

13,781,617
7,546

24.2
–

Underlying diluted earnings per Ordinary share

3,338

13,789,163

24.2
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INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Goodwill
£’000

Capitalised
development
costs
£’000

Total
£’000

Cost:
At 1 June 2006
Addition
Currency translation adjustment

18,261
–
(98)

–
420
–

18,261
420
(98)

At 31 May 2007

18,163

420

18,583

Depreciation:
At 1 June 2006
Charge for the year
Currency translation adjustment

1,336
911
(8)

–
–
–

1,336
911
(8)

At 31 May 2007

2,239

–

2,239

Net book value:
At 31 May 2007

15,924

420

16,344

At 31 May 2006

16,925

–

16,925

Group

Company

Goodwill
£’000

Cost:
At 1 June 2006 and 31 May 2007

5,627

Amortisation:
At 1 June 2006
Charge for the year

610
281

At 31 May 2007

891

Net book value:
At 31 May 2007

4,736

At 31 May 2006

5,017

Goodwill is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 20 years, being the period over which the Directors
estimate that the values of the underlying businesses acquired are expected to exceed the value of the underlying assets. The
Directors have conducted an impairment review of goodwill and concluded that it is not impaired.
.
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TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Freehold land
and buildings
£’000

Short
leasehold
improvements
£’000

Plant,
equipment and
motor vehicles
£’000

Total
£’000

Cost:
At 1 June 2006
Additions
Disposals
Currency translation adjustment

633
–
(347)
–

638
12
–
–

3,346
773
(518)
(4)

4,617
785
(865)
(4)

At 31 May 2007

286

650

3,597

4,533

Depreciation:
At 1 June 2006
Charge for the year
Disposals
Currency translation adjustment

68
12
(68)
–

155
54
–
–

2,345
504
(316)
(1)

2,568
570
(384)
(1)

At 31 May 2007

12

209

2,532

2,753

Net book value:
At 31 May 2007

274

441

1,065

1,780

At 31 May 2006

565

483

1,001

2,049

Group

Plant, equipment and motor vehicles include assets held under finance leases with a net book value of £nil (2006: £31,000).

Company
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Plant,
equipment and
motor vehicles
£’000

Cost:
At 1 June 2006
Additions
Disposals

402
178
(71)

At 31 May 2007

509

Depreciation:
At 1 June 2006
Charge for the year
Disposals

211
95
(44)

At 31 May 2007

262

Net book value:
At 31 May 2007

247

At 31 May 2006

191
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FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
Total
£’000

Company – Investment in subsidiary undertakings
Cost
At 31 May 2006
Prior period adjustment:
– share-based payments charge in respect of employees of subsidiary undertakings

25,334
289

Cost at 1 June 2006
Additions:
– share-based payments charge in respect of employees of subsidiary undertakings

25,623

At 31 May 2007

26,100

477

Provision for impairment
At 1 June 2006 and 31 May 2007

(8,182)

Net book value:
At 31 May 2007

17,918

At 31 May 2006
Prior period adjustment

17,152
289

At 1 June 2006

17,441

At 31 May 2007 the Company held the following direct shareholdings in its subsidiaries which had been active during the year:

Class
of share

Country of
Incorporation

Percentage
held at
31 May 2007

Ordinary shares

UK

100%

Quadrant Security Group Limited
Design, installation and maintenance of CCTV security systems
and integrated security systems

Ordinary shares

UK

100%

SSS Management Services Limited
Security management and support services

Ordinary shares

UK

100%

Synectic Systems, Inc.
Design and supply of video systems control products and
integrated digital CCTV systems

Common stock

USA

100%

Subsidiary and activity
Synectic Systems Group Limited
Design and manufacture of video systems control products,
integrated digital CCTV systems and CCTV equipment and
systems for extreme or hazardous environments

Details of the principal subsidiaries are shown on page 56.
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PROPERTY HELD FOR RESALE
Group

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

Total

2,056

–

During the year, the Group acquired a property for £2,056,000, using existing funds, to allow for further expansion of the business.
Subsequent to the year end, it is intended to sell and lease back the property, and accordingly this asset has been classified as a
current asset.

18

STOCKS
Group

Company

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

Raw materials and consumables
Finished goods for resale

2,252
2,140

2,055
1,853

1,339
–

1,199
–

Contract balances

4,392
682

3,908
373

1,339
–

1,199
–

5,074

4,281

1,339

1,199

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

746
(64)

437
(64)

–
–

–
–

682

373

–

–

Contract balances comprise:
Group

Net costs incurred
Applicable payments on account
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DEBTORS
Group

Company

2007
£’000

Restated
2006
£’000

2007
£’000

Restated
2006
£’000

Trade debtors
Amounts recoverable on contracts
Deferred taxation
Other debtors
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Prepayments and accrued income

11,611
6,861
1,029
830
–
1,177

13,257
4,597
901
430
–
805

904
–
92
293
14,460
376

1,301
–
38
39
8,968
138

Amounts falling due within one year

21,508

19,990

16,125

10,484

–

–

387

387

21,508

19,990

16,512

10,871

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Group

Deferred taxation
At 1 June 2006
Credit/(charge) to profit and loss account
Currency translation adjustment
At 31 May 2007

Company

2007
£’000

Restated
2006
£’000

2007
£’000

Restated
2006
£’000

901
141
(13)

323
586
(8)

38
54
–

298
(260)
–

1,029

901

92

38

The deferred taxation balances comprise:
Group

Fixed asset timing differences
Other timing differences
Tax losses

Company

2007
£’000

Restated
2006
£’000

2007
£’000

Restated
2006
£’000

229
389
411

290
114
497

15
49
28

11
12
15

1,029

901

92

38

43

Quadnetics Group plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2007

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 May 2007
20

CREDITORS
Group

Amounts falling due within one year
Bank overdrafts
Payments on account
Trade creditors
Amounts owed to subsidiaries
Corporation tax
Other taxation and social security
Other creditors
Obligations under finance leases
Accruals and deferred income

Company

2007
£’000

Restated
2006
£’000

2007
£’000

Restated
2006
£’000

–
476
8,459
–
1,071
868
895
–
8,818

–
1,032
10,118
–
536
1,197
677
20
8,466

6,897
–
820
35
–
107
844
–
444

994
–
1,049
2,764
–
136
348
–
394

20,587

22,046

9,147

5,685

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

–

–

703

204

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

–
–

–
20

6,897
–

994
–

–

20

6,897

994

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

–

20

6,897

994

Group

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts owed to subsidiaries

Company

Group

Borrowings
Bank overdrafts
Obligations under finance leases

Company

Total borrowings are repayable as follows:
Group

Borrowings repayable in:
One year

Company

Finance leases bore interest at fixed rates between 8% and 11% and were secured on the assets concerned.
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PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES
Deferred
consideration
£’000

Restructuring
£’000

Property
£’000

Total
£’000

At 1 June 2006
Utilised in year
(Credit)/charge to profit and loss account
Currency translation adjustment

1,069
–
–
(58)

161
(158)
(3)
–

533
(252)
20
–

1,763
(410)
17
(58)

At 31 May 2007

1,011

–

301

1,312

Group

Company
At 1 June 2006
Utilised in year
Credit to profit and loss account

Property
£’000
303
(205)
(95)

At 31 May 2007

3

It is anticipated that the provisions carried forward at 31 May 2007 will be utilised within the following timescales:
Number
of years
Deferred contingent consideration in respect of the acquisition of
the trade and net assets of AlphaPoint LLC
Property costs provision for the future costs of empty leasehold
properties and dilapidations

Three
Ten

In May 2005, the Group acquired the trade and net assets of AlphaPoint LLC, a specialist provider of digital surveillance technology in
North America, for a total consideration of up to $3.3 million, made up of $0.7 million in cash at completion, $0.2 million in Ordinary
shares of the Company, plus a further $0.4 million in Ordinary shares and $2 million in cash dependent on the profits of the business
over the four years to 31 May 2009. The deferred cash consideration is calculated at 22.5% of the amount by which cumulative
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (‘EBITDA’) exceed $1.1 million in aggregate in the four years, up to a
maximum of $2 million. Payments are made annually once the $1.1 million threshold has been exceeded. Full provision has been
made for this deferred consideration as the Directors believe that it is likely that the full liability of $2 million will be incurred.
In addition, the Group has a number of properties where the Directors believe that dilapidation costs may be incurred or where the
property is currently unoccupied and the Group is incurring rent and other costs, and therefore appropriate cost provisions have
been made.
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CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
The number of authorised, allotted, called up and fully paid shares is as follows:

Number

2007
£’000

Number

2006
£’000

Authorised

25,000,000

5,000

25,000,000

5,000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
Shares to be issued

16,404,622
503,562

3,281
101

15,696,973
619,711

3,139
124

16,908,184

3,382

16,316,684

3,263

Ordinary shares of 20p each

The following changes in the issued share capital arose during the year:
1)

During the year the Company made the following allotment of Ordinary shares to the Quadnetics Group Employee Share
Scheme for a consideration of £1,179,000 in cash, funded by a loan from the Company (see note 24):
Number
of shares

Date
13 July 2006
27 March 2007

510,000
26,500
536,500

2)

During the year the Company issued 116,149 Ordinary shares to former holders of Protec shares in connection with the
acquisition of Protec plc. At 31 May 2007, a further 503,562 Ordinary shares remained to be issued to Protec shareholders who
had irrevocably accepted the Offer, thus transferring beneficial interest in their Protec shares to the Company, but who had not at
that time perfected their acceptance by submitting valid share certificates to the Company’s registrars. Subsequent to the year
end, 500,152 of these outstanding shares have been issued.

3)

During the year, 55,000 Ordinary shares were issued as a result of share options held in the Company’s EMI share option scheme
being exercised. Further details are given in note 23.

The impact on share capital, share premium account, merger reserve and other reserves was as follows:

Issue of shares to employee share scheme
Consideration for acquisition of Protec plc:
– Shares issued
– Shares to be issued
Issue of shares to EMI share option holders
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Number
of shares

Share
capital
£’000

Share
premium
£’000

Merger
reserve
£’000

Other
reserves
£’000

Total
£’000

536,500

108

1,071

–

(1,179)

–

116,149
(116,149)
55,000

23
(23)
11

–
–
146

267
(267)
–

–
–
–

290
(290)
157

591,500

119

1,217

–

(1,179)

157
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OPTIONS OVER SHARES OF QUADNETICS GROUP plc
Outstanding EMI options at 31 May 2007 are exercisable as follows, subject to the holder still being employed by the Group at the
time of exercise:
Option
Number
Date granted
Exercise dates
price
of options
11 April 2003
5 March 2004
30 September 2004

11 April 2005–10 April 2013
5 March 2006–4 March 2014
30 September 2006–29 September 2014

135.0p
300.0p
280.0p

Outstanding options at 31 May 2007

10,000
163,333
10,715
184,048

The following EMI options were exercised during the year:
Date granted

Number of options exercised

Exercise dates

5,000
50,000

23 June 2006
7 February 2007

11 April 2003
5 March 2004

Option price
135.0p
300.0p

In addition, the holders of Protec EMI options at the time of the acquisition were able to elect to convert these options into options of
the same value over Ordinary shares in Quadnetics Group plc. As a result, former Protec EMI option holders held options over a
further 41,275 Ordinary shares at 31 May 2006. During the year, options over 581 Ordinary shares lapsed, leaving outstanding options
over 40,694 Ordinary shares at 31 May 2007, which were exercisable as follows:
Option
Number
Date granted
Exercise dates
price
of options
23 May 2001
24 October 2001
16 April 2002
10 December 2002
18 November 2003
30 April 2004

23 May 2004–22 May 2011
24 October 2004–23 October 2011
16 April 2005–15 April 2012
10 December 2005–9 December 2012
18 November 2006–17 November 2013
30 April 2007–29 April 2014

301.0p
292.4p
163.4p
258.0p
516.0p
430.0p

16,278
3,488
4,651
5,814
9,882
581
40,694

The above note relates to both the Group and the Company.

24

EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME
Details of Ordinary shares held by the Quadnetics Group Employee Share Scheme are as follows:

At start of year
Allotted by the Company during the year
At end of year

2007
Number

2006
Number

842,000
536,500

–
842,000

1,378,500

842,000

Under the provisions of the scheme, these shares (‘the Scheme Shares’) are held for the benefit of nominated employees and
directors on terms, similar to a share option scheme, whereby the value of appreciation in the Company’s share price over a minimum
three year period accrues to the relevant employee or director, provided the Company meets certain performance thresholds linked to
the FTSE AIM All Share Total Return Index. The substantial majority of the funding for subscription for the Scheme Shares was
provided as an interest-free loan by the Company to Synectics Group Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and trustee
to the scheme, and it is intended that this loan will ultimately be repaid following sale of the Scheme Shares in the market once the
three year qualification requirements and performance criteria have been met. Dividends on the Scheme Shares have been waived.
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EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME CONTINUED
The Scheme Shares have been allocated to employees under the following grants:

Exercise dates

Relevant
share price at
date of grant

Number
of shares

16 June 2008 onwards
23 June 2008 onwards
27 March 2009 onwards
12 July 2009 onwards
27 March 2010 onwards

241.0p
241.0p
242.5p
212.5p
360.0p

620,000
160,000
62,000
510,000
26,500

Date granted
16 June 2005
23 June 2005
27 March 2006
12 July 2006
27 March 2007

1,378,500
At 31 May 2007 the market value of the shares held by the Scheme, but not yet vested, was £4,652,000 (2006: £1,831,000).
The above note relates to both the Group and the Company.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT CHARGE
The fair value of services received in return for share options granted or awards made under the Group’s share schemes are measured
by reference to the fair value of the share options granted or share scheme shares awarded. For the options granted during the year,
the estimate of the fair value of the services received is measured based on a Black-Scholes option pricing model using the following
assumptions:
Quadnetics Group Employee Share Scheme

2007

Weighted average share price
Exercise price
Expected volatility
Option life
Dividend yield
Risk-free interest rate (based on Government bonds)

2006

207.1p
219.8p
35%
3.25 years
2.86%
4.78%

233.2p
241.1p
35%
3.25 years
2.09%
4.29%

The expected volatility is wholly based on the historic volatility (calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the share
options).
Share options are granted under a service condition and also, for grants to employees under the Quadnetics Group Employee Share
Scheme, a performance measure based around the Company’s share price relative to the FTSE AIM All Share Total Return Index. Such
conditions are not taken into account in the grant date fair value measurement of the services received. There are no conditions, other
than a service condition associated with the share option grants.
The total expenses recognised for the year arising from share-based payments are as follows:
Group

Equity-settled share-based payments
Cash-settled share-based payments

Total carrying value of liabilities
Total intrinsic carrying amount of liabilities
in respect of vested benefits
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Company

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

53
542

42
288

–
87

–
39

595

330

87

39

830

288

830

288

–

–

–

–
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RESERVES
The movements on reserves during the year were as follows:
Share
premium
account
£’000

Merger
reserve
£’000

Other
reserves
£’000

Profit
and loss
account
£’000

Total
£’000

At 31 May 2006
Prior period adjustment (note 2)

13,634
–

9,565
–

(1,307)
–

3,423
(202)

25,315
(202)

At 1 June 2006 (as restated)
Issue of shares to employee share scheme
Issue of shares to EMI share option holders
Profit after tax for the year
Dividends paid (note 12)
Credit in relation to share-based payments
Currency translation adjustment

13,634
1,071
146
–
–
–
–

9,565
–
–
–
–
–
–

(1,307)
(1,179)
–
–
–
–
–

3,221
–
–
2,702
(825)
53
(4)

25,113
(108)
146
2,702
(825)
53
(4)

At 31 May 2007

14,851

9,565

(2,486)

5,147

27,077

Share
premium
account
£’000

Merger
reserve
£’000

Other
reserves
£’000

Profit
and loss
account
£’000

Total
£’000

At 31 May 2006
Prior period adjustment (note 2)

13,634
–

9,565
–

(1,307)
–

3,360
14

25,252
14

At 1 June 2006 (as restated)
Issue of shares to employee share scheme
Issue of shares to EMI share option holders
Profit after tax for the year
Dividends paid (note 12)
Credit in relation to share-based payments

13,634
1,071
146
–
–
–

9,565
–
–
–
–
–

(1,307)
(1,179)
–
–
–
–

3,374
–
–
2,985
(825)
53

25,266
(108)
146
2,985
(825)
53

At 31 May 2007

14,851

9,565

(2,486)

5,587

27,517

Group

Company

Cumulative goodwill written off directly to the profit and loss account at 31 May 2007 was £593,000 (2006: £593,000).
Other reserves includes a capital redemption reserve of £8,000 (2006: £8,000).
The merger reserve has been created in accordance with section 131 of the Companies Act 1985 whereby the premium on Ordinary
shares in the Company issued to acquire shares has been credited to the merger reserve rather than the share premium account.
The cost of own shares held within the Quadnetics Group Employee Share Scheme of £3,209,000 (2006: £2,030,000) has been
deducted from other reserves. The nominal value of these shares is £275,700 (2006: £168,400).
The consolidated result attributable to the shareholders of Quadnetics Group plc for the year includes a profit of £2,985,000 (2006:
£2,206,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. Quadnetics Group plc has taken advantage of the
legal dispensation under section 230(4) of the Companies Act 1985 allowing it not to publish a separate profit and loss account.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Company has agreed, in some instances jointly with subsidiary companies, to guarantee borrowings, annual operating lease
rentals and performance bonds amounting to £0.9 million at 31 May 2007 (2006: £0.9 million).

28

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
1)
Sales in the year of £nil (2006: £6,000) were made to Trafficland, Inc., of which DJ Coghlan is a director and shareholder.
2)

Sales in the year of £873,000 (2006: £690,000) were made to Coex Services Asia Pte Ltd, in which the Group has an investment
(original cost: £8,000 now fully written down), but does not exercise any influence.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
At the year end capital commitments not provided for in these financial statements amounted to £nil (2006: £5,000).
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OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group and Company are committed to making operating lease payments during the next year as follows:

Group
Operating leases which expire:
Within one year
Within two to five years
In excess of five years

Company
Operating leases which expire:
Within one year
Within two to five years
In excess of five years
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Other
£’000

2007
Total
£’000

Land and
buildings
£’000

Other
£’000

2006
Total
£’000

52
311
51

93
612
–

145
923
51

29
153
259

127
466
–

156
619
259

414

705

1,119

441

593

1,034

Land and
buildings
£’000

Other
£’000

2007
Total
£’000

Land and
buildings
£’000

Other
£’000

2006
Total
£’000

–
27
19

16
59
–

16
86
19

–
27
19

–
35
–

–
62
19

46

75

121

46

35
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RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO OPERATING CASH FLOWS

Operating profit
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss/(profit) on sale of fixed assets
Share-based payments charge
Increase in stocks
Increase in debtors
(Decrease)/increase in creditors and provisions
Net cash inflow from operating activities

50

Land and
buildings
£’000

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

3,589
1,481
20
595
(793)
(1,356)
(2,924)

1,432
1,215
(8)
330
(1,182)
(123)
1,582

612

3,246
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ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS
2007
£’000

2006
£’000

Interest received
Interest paid

236
(3)

141
(9)

Net cash inflow from investments and servicing of finance

233

132

Capital expenditure and financial investment

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Sale of tangible fixed assets
Purchase of intangible fixed assets
Purchase of property held for resale

(785)
472
(420)
(2,056)

(317)
79
–
–

Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial investment

(2,789)

(238)

Acquisitions

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

Acquisitions
Repayment of loan notes (issued in respect of acquisitions made in 2004)

–
–

3,570
(350)

Net cash inflow on acquisitions

–

3,220

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

Issue of shares
Share buy-back
Payment of principal under finance leases

157
–
(20)

12
(77)
(45)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing

137

(110)

1 June
2006
£'000

Cash
flow
£'000

31 May
2007
£’000

Cash
Finance leases

8,940
(20)

(3,344)
20

5,596
–

Total net funds

8,920

(3,324)

5,596

Returns from investments and servicing of finance

Financing

33

ANALYSIS OF NET FUNDS
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PENSION COMMITMENTS
The Group operates a defined benefit pension scheme and a number of defined contribution schemes.
a) Defined benefit scheme
The Company operates the Quadrant Group plc Retirement Benefit Scheme. This scheme includes both a defined benefits section in
respect of past employees of the Group and a defined contributions section in respect of one current employee. The accrual of
benefits in the defined benefit section ceased in 1996 and the section now relates to members whose benefits represent deferred
pensions only. The last full actuarial valuation of the defined benefit section was carried out by a qualified independent actuary as at
1 July 2004 which has been updated, on an approximate basis, for the year ends 31 May 2006 and 31 May 2007. The previous
actuarial valuation as at 1 July 2001 has been updated, on an approximate basis, for the other year ends included below. No
contributions are being made by the Group and this is to continue until reviewed following the triennial valuation of the scheme due as
at 1 July 2007.
The disclosures below relate to the defined benefits section, with the contributions to the defined contributions section being disclosed
in section b).
Principal actuarial assumptions
The assets of the scheme are stated at market value and the liabilities have been calculated using the following principal actuarial
assumptions:
31 May
31 May
31 May
2007
2006
2005
% per annum
% per annum
% per annum
Inflation
Rate of discount
Increases in pensions in payment
Revaluation rate for deferred pensioners

3.30
5.50
2.50
3.30

3.00
5.00
2.50
3.00

2.75
5.00
2.50
2.75

On the basis of these assumptions the value of the assets and liabilities of the scheme as at 31 May 2007, 31 May 2006 and 31 May
2005 are as set out below. However, as the surplus arising in each of these three years is not recoverable by the Group no assets have
been included in the balance sheet of the Company or the Group.
31 May
2007
£’000

31 May
2006
£’000

31 May
2005
£’000

Assets
Equities
Bonds
Cash

105
4,192
618

87
4,562
502

75
4,369
627

Total market value of assets
Present value of scheme liabilities

4,915
(4,459)

5,151
(4,619)

5,071
(4,507)

456
(456)

532
(532)

564
(564)

–

–

–

31 May
2007
% per annum

31 May
2006
% per annum

31 May
2005
% per annum

8.00
5.00
4.00

8.00
4.50
4.00

8.00
4.50
4.00

Surplus in the scheme
Amount of surplus not recoverable
Net pension asset/(liability)

The following long-term rates of return on the scheme’s assets above, have been used:

Equities
Bonds
Cash
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PENSION COMMITMENTS CONTINUED
The following amounts have been included in the financial statements under the headings shown:
Year ended
31 May
2007
£’000

Year ended
31 May
2006
£’000

Operating profit
Current service cost
Past service cost

–
–

–
–

Charge to operating profit

–

–

227
(227)

222
(222)

–

–

Other financial income
Interest on pension scheme liabilities
Expected return on pension scheme assets
Credited to other financial income

As the defined benefits section of the scheme has a surplus which cannot be recovered, the expected return on pension scheme
assets has been restricted so that it does not exceed the interest on pension scheme liabilities.
Year ended
31 May
2007
£’000
Analysis of the amounts recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses
Difference between expected and actual return on scheme assets
Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilities
Effects of changes in the demographic and financial assumptions underlying the
present value of the scheme liabilities
Adjustment due to surplus cap
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses

Movement in the surplus during the year
Surplus in scheme at beginning of year
Movement in year:
Current service cost
Net finance charge
Contributions
Past service costs
Actuarial loss
Surplus in scheme at end of year

Year ended
31 May
2006
£’000

(303)
–

(2)
–

227
76

(30)
32

–

–

Year ended
31 May
2007
£’000

Year ended
31 May
2006
£’000

532

564

–
–
–
–
(76)

–
–
–
–
(32)

456

532
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PENSION COMMITMENTS CONTINUED
History of experience gains and losses
A history of the amounts recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses for the previous five years is as follows:
Year ended
31 May
2007
£’000

Year ended
31 May
2006
£’000

Year ended
31 May
2005
£’000

Year ended
31 May
2004
£’000

Year ended
31 May
2003
£’000

(303)
(6%)

(2)
0%

472
9%

(397)
(9%)

745
15%

Experience gains and losses on scheme liabilities:
Amount
Percentage of the present value of the scheme liabilities

–
0%

–
0%

(12)
0%

–
0%

–
0%

Effects of changes in the demographic and financial
assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme liabilities:
Amount
Percentage of the present value of the scheme liabilities

227
5%

(30)
(1%)

(890)
(20%)

334
9%

(587)
(15%)

Adjustment due to surplus cap:
Amount
Percentage of present value of scheme liabilities

76
2%

32
1%

430
10%

63
2%

(158)
(4%)

Total amount recognised in statement of total recognised
gains and losses:
Amount
Percentage of the present value of the scheme liabilities

–
0%

–
0%

–
0%

–
0%

–
0%

Difference between expected and actual return on
scheme assets:
Amount
Percentage of scheme assets

b) Defined contribution schemes
As noted above, the Quadrant Group plc Retirement Benefit Scheme includes a defined contribution section. Contributions made by
Quadnetics Group plc to this scheme amount to £8,000 in the year (2006: £7,000).
There are also a number of other defined contribution pension schemes operated by various companies within the Group. The
Group’s total expense for these other schemes in the year was £315,000 (2006: £256,000). The Company’s total expense for these
schemes during the year was £45,000 (2006: £41,000).
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank and cash balances, bank overdrafts, obligations under finance leases and
trade debtors and trade creditors that arise directly from its operations.
The Group does not trade in financial instruments and has taken advantage of the exemption to exclude short-term debtors and
creditors from the disclosures relating to financial instruments.
The Group’s operations expose it to a variety of financial risks including the effects of changes in foreign exchange rates, credit risk,
liquidity and interest rates as explained below.
Foreign currency risk
The Group is exposed in its trading operations to the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The main foreign currencies
in which the Group operates are the US dollar and the euro. The Group’s policy is to manage any material currency risks involved in
these transactions through the use of derivatives (principally forward exchange contracts). At 31 May 2007 the Group had
commitments in respect of forward exchange contracts for the sale of $nil (2006: $nil) and €nil (2006: €0.1 million) maturing within the
next year. The fair value of these forward exchange contracts is not considered to be materially different to the value determined in the
contracts. At 31 May 2007 the Group held $2,462,000, the majority of which was held by the Group’s US subsidiary as working
capital, and €217,000.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED
The table below shows the extent to which the Group had monetary assets and liabilities in currencies other than the local currency of
the company in which they are recorded. Foreign exchange differences on the retranslation of these assets and liabilities are taken to
the profit and loss account of the Group.

Functional currency of Group operation
Sterling
US Dollars

US
Dollars
£’000

Euros
£’000

2007
Total
£’000

US
Dollars
£’000

Euros
£’000

2006
Total
£’000

210
–

147
–

357
–

77
–

216
–

293
–

210

147

357

77

216

293

Credit risk
The Group is exposed to the usual credit risk and cash flow risk associated with selling on credit and manages this through its
management review processes and credit control procedures.
Liquidity risk
The Group ensures that sufficient cash and undrawn facilities are available to fund ongoing operations and to meet its medium term
capital and funding obligations, and to meet any unforeseen obligations and opportunities.
Interest risk
Interest bearing assets comprise cash and bank deposits which earn interest at a market rate.
At the year end, the Group had net funds of:

Short term bank deposits
Current accounts
Finance leases

2007
£’000

2006
£’000

3,832
1,764
–

7,710
1,230
(20)

5,596

8,920

The bank deposits bore interest at rates between 3.75% and 5.55% (2006: 3.88% and 4.35%), the current accounts do not bear
interest. Details of the applicable interest rates and maturity profile of the Group’s debt are shown in note 20. The Group’s funds did
not carry any significant interest rate risk at 31 May 2006 and 31 May 2007.
There is no difference between the fair value and the book value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities.
In addition to the Group’s debt, the earliest date of payment of the Group’s other financial liability is within one to two years. This
financial liability, which is included in provisions as contingent consideration, bears no interest.
The level of the Group’s bank overdraft facilities is reviewed annually and at 31 May 2007 the Group had undrawn facilities of up to
£3 million.
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Principal Subsidiaries
The principal subsidiaries and divisions within the Group are as
follows:

Synectic Systems Group Limited
Design and development of advanced surveillance technology

Quadrant Security Group Limited
Design, installation, maintenance and management of advanced
integrated CCTV and security systems

www.synx.com
Synectics House
3–4 Broadfield Close
Sheffield S8 0XN
Tel: +44 (0) 114 255 2509

www.qsg.co.uk
Axis 7, Rhodes Way
Radlett Road
Watford
Hertfordshire WD24 4TP
Tel: +44 (0) 1923 211550
3A Attenborough Lane
Chilwell
Nottingham NG9 5JN
Tel: +44 (0) 115 925 2521

www.synx.com
The Flarepath
Elsham Wold
Brigg
North Lincolnshire DN20 0SP
Tel: +44 (0) 1652 688908

9 Hadrian Court
Team Valley Industrial Estate
Gateshead
Tyne and Wear NE11 0XW
Tel: +44 (0) 191 487 2342

Synectics – Security Networks
Developers of integrated software solutions and products for
complex security and surveillance networks

Look CCTV
Development and supply of CCTV systems for bus manufacturers
and operators

www.synx.com
Synectics House
3-4 Broadfield Close
Sheffield S8 0XN
Tel: +44 (0) 114 255 2509

www.lookcctv.com
Unit 4
Wyrefields
Poulton-le-Fylde
Lancashire FY6 8JX
Tel: +44 (0) 1253 891222
Look CCTV trades as a division of Quadnetics Group plc
SSS Management Services Limited
Total security outsourcing support and management services to the
retail and multi-site markets
www.sss-support.co.uk
Shannon House
245 Coldharbour Lane
Aylesford
Kent ME20 7NS
Tel: +44 (0) 1622 798200
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Synectics – Industrial Systems
Specialist manufacturer of CCTV equipment and systems for
extreme or hazardous environments

Synectics – Surveillance Technology
Advanced imaging systems and radio frequency technology for the
defence and private sectors
www.synx.com
Unit 32, Alexandra Way
Ashchurch Business Centre
Tewkesbury
Gloucestershire GL20 8NB
Tel: +44 (0) 1684 295807
Synectic Systems, Inc.
Developers of integrated software solutions and products for
complex security and surveillance networks
www.synecticsusa.com
4180 Via Real, Suite A
Carpinteria
California 93013
USA
Tel: 00 1 805 745 1920
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Notice of Meeting
Notice is hereby given that the twenty-fourth Annual General
Meeting of Quadnetics Group plc will be held at the offices of Brewin
Dolphin Securities Limited, 12 Smithfield Street, London, EC1A 9BD
on 28 November 2007 at 10.00 a.m. for the following purposes:

(2)

The minimum price which may be paid for such shares is
20p per share (exclusive of all expenses);

(3)

The maximum price which may be paid for such shares
is, in respect of a share contracted to be purchased on
any day, an amount (exclusive of expenses) equal to 5%
above the average middle market quotations for an
Ordinary share of the Company as derived from the Daily
Official List of the London Stock Exchange on the five
dealing days immediately preceding the day on which the
share is contracted to be purchased;

(4)

The power hereby granted shall expire on the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company after
the passing of this Resolution or, if earlier, on
31 December 2008; and

(5)

The Company may make a contract to purchase its
Ordinary shares under the authority hereby granted prior
to the expiry of such authority which will or may be
executed wholly or partly after the expiry of such
authority, and may make a purchase of its Ordinary
shares in pursuance of such contract.

Ordinary Business
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolutions as
Ordinary Resolutions:
1.

To receive and adopt the Report of the Directors and Audited
Accounts for the year ended 31 May 2007.

2.

To declare a final dividend of 4.0p per Ordinary share.

3.

To re-elect as a Director DJ Coghlan who, being eligible,
submits himself for re-election.

4.

To re-elect as a Director G Robinson who, being eligible,
submits himself for re-election.

5.

To re-elect as a Director RC Singleton who, being eligible,
submits himself for re-election.

6.

To appoint KPMG Audit Plc as Auditors to hold office until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to
authorise the Directors to set their remuneration.

Special Business
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolutions.
Resolution 7 will be proposed as an Ordinary Resolution and
Resolutions 8 and 9 as Special Resolutions:
7.

8.

That, in substitution for the existing general authorities granted
at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company, in
accordance with section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 (‘the
Act’), the Directors be and are hereby generally and
unconditionally authorised to exercise all powers of the
Company to allot relevant securities (as defined in section 80
of the Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,163,795
(being approximately 34% of the issued share capital of the
Company) provided that this authority (unless previously
revoked or renewed) shall expire on the earlier date of
31 December 2008 and the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company after the passing of this
resolution save that the Company may before such expiry
make an offer or agreement which would or might require
relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry and the
Directors may allot relevant securities in pursuance of such
offer or agreement as if the authority conferred hereby had not
expired.

9.

That,
(1) Conditionally upon the passing of Resolution No. 7 and in
substitution for all existing powers, in accordance with
section 95 of the Act, the Directors be and are hereby
given power to allot equity securities pursuant to the
authorities conferred by Resolution No. 7 as if subsection (1) of section 89 of the Act did not apply to any
such allotment PROVIDED THAT:
a)

the power hereby granted shall be limited to the
allotment of equity securities in connection with or
pursuant to an offer by way of rights issue in favour
of the existing holders of Ordinary shares in the
capital of the Company and other persons entitled
to participate therein in proportion (as nearly as may
be) to such holders’ holdings of such shares (or, as
appropriate, to the numbers of shares which such
other persons are for these purposes deemed to
hold) subject only to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors may deem
necessary or expedient to deal with fractional
entitlements or legal problems under the laws of any
territory or the requirements of any recognised
regulatory body or stock exchange;

b)

the power hereby granted shall be limited to the
allotment (otherwise than pursuant to subparagraph (a) of this proviso) of equity securities up
to an aggregate nominal amount of £169,048,
being approximately 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital;

c)

the power hereby granted shall expire on the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of
the Company after the passing of this Resolution or,
if earlier, on 31 December 2008; and

That, the Company be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally authorised pursuant to section 166 of the Act
to make one or more market purchases (as defined in section
163(3) of the Act) of its Ordinary shares of 20p each on such
terms and in such manner as the Directors shall determine,
provided that:
(1)

The maximum number of Ordinary shares hereby
authorised to be acquired is 1,690,477 (representing
10% of the present issued Ordinary share capital of the
Company);
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d)

(2)

(3)

the power hereby granted shall apply in relation to a
sale of shares which is an allotment of equity
securities by virtue of section 94 (3A) of the Act as if
the words ‘pursuant to the authorities conferred by
Resolution No. 7’ in the first paragraph of this
Resolution 9 were omitted.

The said power shall allow and enable the Directors to
make an offer or agreement before the expiry of that
power which would or might require equity securities to
be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot
equity securities in pursuance of such an offer or
agreement as if the power conferred hereby had not
expired.

Notes:
1.
Further to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities
Regulations 2001 only those shareholders registered in the
register of members of the Company as at 10.00 a.m. on
26 November 2007 shall be entitled to attend or vote at this
meeting in respect of the number of shares registered in their
name at that time. Changes to entries on the register after this
time will be disregarded in determining the rights of any person
to attend or vote at the meeting.
2.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may
appoint a proxy (who need not be a member) to attend or vote
instead of him. A member submitting a proxy is not precluded
from attending the meeting and voting if they wish to do so. To
be effective, proxy forms and the power of attorney or other
authority (if any) under which it is signed, or a notarially certified
copy of such power of authority, must be received at the office
of the Registrars of the Company, Capita Registrars, Proxy
Department, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham,
Kent, BR3 4BR, not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for the holding of the meeting, or any adjournment
thereof.

3.

Copies of the Directors’ service agreements together with the
Register of Directors’ share interests, will be available for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during
normal working business hours on each business day and will
be available for inspection on the day of the Annual General
Meeting for 15 minutes prior to and during the continuance of
the meeting.

4.

In the case of joint holdings, the vote of the senior holder shall
be accepted to the exclusion of the other joint holders,
whether in person or by proxy. For this purpose, seniority shall
be deemed by the order of the names of the holders as
entered in the Company’s Register of Members in respect of
relevant joint holdings.

Words and expressions defined in or for the purposes of
Part IV of the Act shall bear the same meaning herein.

By Order of the Board
NC Poultney
Secretary
5 September 2007
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Form of Proxy
For use at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 28 November 2007 commencing at 10.00 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof.
I/We . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
(please complete in block capitals)
of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
being (a) holder(s) of Ordinary shares in Quadnetics Group plc (the ‘Company’) hereby appoint the Chairman of the Meeting (see note 4)
or . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf in the manner indicated below at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held on 28 November 2007 at 10.00 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof in connection with the Resolutions set out in the Notice of Meeting.
RESOLUTIONS

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.

To receive and adopt the Report and Accounts

2.

To declare a final dividend

3.

To re-elect DJ Cochlan as a Director

4.

To re-elect G Robinson as a Director

5.

To re-elect RC Singleton as a Director

6.

To appoint KPMG Audit Plc as Auditors

FOR

DISCRETIONARY
(see note 3)

AGAINST

VOTE
WITHHELD
(see note 6)

SPECIAL BUSINESS
7.

To authorise the Directors to allot shares

8.

To authorise the Company to purchase its own shares

9.

To authorise the Directors to allot shares and to disapply
statutory rights of pre-emption

Dated this . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2007
Signature(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

✁

NOTES
1.

Completed forms of proxy must be lodged with the Company’s registrars, Capita Registrars, Proxy Department, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham,
Kent, BR3 4BR, not later than 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting. The completion and return of the form of proxy will not, however, preclude a member
from attending and voting at the Annual General Meeting should they so wish.

2.

In the case of joint holders the vote of the senior who tenders a vote whether in person or by proxy will be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint
holders. For this purpose seniority is determined by the order in which names stand in the Register of Members in respect of the joint holding.

3.

Please indicate how you wish your votes to be cast by inserting a cross in the relevant box. If you select ‘discretionary’ or fail to select any of the given options, the
proxy can vote as he chooses or can decide not to vote at all. The proxy will act at his own discretion in relation to any other business arising at the meeting,
including any resolution to adjourn the meeting. This proxy will only be used in the event of a poll being directed or demanded.

4.

If you wish to appoint some person other than the Chairman as proxy please insert his/her name and address, initial the insertion and strike out the words ‘the
Chairman of the Meeting’. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

5.

In the case of a corporation this form should be executed signed as a deed or signed on its behalf by an attorney or a duly authorised officer. In the case of an
individual this form should be signed by that individual or by his attorney.

6.

The ‘vote withheld’ option is provided to enable you to abstain on any particular Resolution. However, it should be noted that a vote withheld is not a vote in law
and will not be counted in the calculation of the proportion of votes ‘for’ and ‘against’ a Resolution.

7.

Any alterations to this Form of Proxy should be initialled.

59

Second fold
BUSINESS REPLY SERVICE
Licence No. MB122

Capita Registrars
Proxy Department
The Registry
34 Beckenham Road
BECKENHAM
Kent
BR3 4BR

Third fold
and tuck in flap opposite

First fold

1

Advisers
Advisers

SecretarySecretary
and Registered
and Registered
Office
Office
NC Poultney
NC Poultney
QuadneticsQuadnetics
Group plc Group plc
Haydon House
Haydon House
5 Alcester Road
5 Alcester Road
Studley Studley
Warwickshire
Warwickshire
B80 7AN B80 7AN
Tel: +44 (0)Tel:
1527
+44
850080
(0) 1527 850080
e-mail: secretary@quadnetics.com
e-mail: secretary@quadnetics.com
Bankers Bankers
Barclays Bank
Barclays
PLC Bank PLC
15 Colmore15Row
Colmore Row
Birmingham
Birmingham
B3 2EP B3 2EP
Stockbrokers
Stockbrokers
Brewin Dolphin
Brewin
Securities
Dolphin Limited
Securities Limited
34 Lisbon Street
34 Lisbon Street
Leeds LS1Leeds
4LX LS1 4LX

Auditors Auditors
KPMG Audit
KPMG
Plc Audit Plc
2 Cornwall2Street
Cornwall Street
Birmingham
Birmingham
B3 2DL B3 2DL
RegistrarsRegistrars
and Transfer
andOffice
Transfer Office
Capita Registrars
Capita Registrars
Bourne House
Bourne House
34 Beckenham
34 Beckenham
Road
Road
Beckenham
Beckenham
Kent BR3 4TU
Kent BR3 4TU
CorporateCorporate
Communications
Communications
Buchanan Buchanan
Communications
Communications
Limited Limited
45 Moorfields
45 Moorfields
London EC2Y
London
9AE EC2Y 9AE

Quadnetics Group plc
Haydon House, 5 Alcester Road, Studley, Warwickshire, B80 7AN, England
Telephone: +44 (0)1527 850080 Fax: +44 (0)1527 850081
email: info@quadnetics.com
www.quadnetics.com

www.quadnetics.com

